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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that 37" Annual General Meeting of the members, holding Ordinary

Shares of Masood Textile Mills Limited, will be held at its Registered Office, Universal

Housa, 17/1 Naw Civil Linas, Bilal Road, Faizalabad on Thursday, 28™ Octobar, 2021 at

11.00 AM. to transact the following business:

1. To confirm the minutes of the last Annual Ganaral Maeting held on 28" October,
2020,

2. To receive, consider and adopt the Chalrman's Review Report, Reporis of Directors

and Auditors together with Audited Annual Financial Statements of the Company for
the year ended 30" Junse, 2021.

3. To appoint Auditors and to fix their remuneration for the financial year ending 30™
June, 2022, M/s Riaz Ahmad & Company, Chartered Accountants, retire and being
eligible offer themsalvas for their re-appointmant.

4. To consider any other business that may be placed before the meeting with the
permission of the chair.
FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Faisalabad: 08" October, 2021 (Company Secretary)
NOTES:

1. Share Transfer Books for Ordinary Shares of the Company will remain closed from
21" to 28" October, 2021 (both days inclusive). Physical transfers /| CDS
Transactions 1Ds, received in order at Registered Office of the Company or our
Share Reglatrar, by tha closa of businass on 0™ Cetnbar, 2021 will ba fraatad In
timea.

2. Shame Transfer Books for Preference Shares of the Company will remain closed
from 21% to 28" October, 2021 (both days Inclusiva) for detarmining tha antitiement
of Preferred Dividend calculated at average six months KIBOR+200 bps p.a. (Rs.
0.93 per share). Physical transfers / CDS Transactions 1Ds, received in order at
Regislered Office of the Company or our Share Registrar, by the close of business
on 20" October, 2021 will be treated in ime.

3. A shareholder entiied to aftend and voie at this meeting may appoint ancther
shareholder as histher proxy o attend and vote on histher behall. The instrument
appointing a Proxy and Power of Attornay or other authority under which it is signed
or notarially certified copy of the Power of Attomey must be recsived at the
Registered Office of the Company, duly siamped, signed and witnessed nol later
than 48 hours before the meeting. An Instrument of Proxy applicable for meeting Is
attached herewith. However, Preference Shareholders are not entitled to attend the
meeting, since Preference Shares camy no voting rights

4, Shareholders whose shares are deposited with Cenlral Depository System (CDS)
are requestad to bring their Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) along with
their Account Number in CDS for verification. In case of corporate entity, the Board
of Directors’ Resolution/Power of Attorney with spacimen signatures of the nominea
shall be produced (unless provided eardier) at the time of the meseting.

5. Pursuant fo Finance Act, 2021, the Company is liable to withhold Income Tax @ 15
% from the Filers and 30 % from the Non-Filers under the provisions of Section 150

®
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of the Income Tax Ordinanca, 2001. Kindly ensure your status from Active Tax
Payer's List, available st FBR's website, before disbursement of Dividend by the
Company. Individuals without CNIC{s) will be treated Non-Filers, since their status
cannol be verified from FEBR.

8. The members of the Company are required to submit Declaration for Zakat
axamption in tarms of Zakat and Ushr Ordinanca, 1980. Moraover, the sharaholders
who have not yet submitted their Computerizad Mational Identity Cards to the
Company are requested once again to send attasted copies thereof at their earliest.
Otherwise, their Dividend will be withheld for lack of complete information.

7. The provisions of Section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017 require the listed
companies that any dividend payeble in cash shall only ba paid through electmonic
mode directly into the bank account of designated by the entitled shareholders.
Accordingly, the shareholders holding physical shares are requested to provide the
Company's Share Registrar al the address given herein above, alectronic dividend
mandate on E-Dividend Form provided on websilte of the Company. In the case of
shares hald in CDC, the same information should be provided to the CDS
participants for updating and forwarding to the Company. In case of non-submission,
all future dividend payments may ba withheld.

8. Shareholders who have not collected their Dividend/Physical shares so far are
advised contact our Share Registrar to collect/enquire about their Unclaimed
Dividend or Share, if any.

9. As per Section 72 of The Companies Acl, 2017 every existing company shall
replace its physical shares with book-entry form in a manner as may be specified
and from the date notified by The SECP, within a period not exceeding four years
from the commencamant of the Companies Act, 2017 i.e. May 31, 2017. Tha
shareholders holding shares in physical form are requested {o please convert their
shares in the book eniry form. For this purpose, the shareholders may open CDC
Sub-account with any of the brokers or investor account directly with the CDC fo
placa their physical shares into scrip-less form. This will facilitate them in many
ways including safe custody and sale of shares at any time they want as the trading
of physical shares is not permitted as per axisting Regulations of the Pakistan Stock
Exchange Limited.

10. Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2017, the shareholders residing In
a city and holding at least 10% of the total paid up share capital may demand the
Company to provide the facility of video-link for participaling in the AGM. The
demand for video-link facility shall be received by the Share Regisirar at the address
given hereinabove at least (7) days prior to the date of the meeting on the Standard
Form available on the Company’s webaite: www.masoodtaxtile.com

11. Pursuanit to the provision of Section 223{(6) of the Companies Aci, 2017, the
Companies are permitted to circulate their annual financial statements, along with
the Auditor's report, director review report ete. ("Annual Report™) and the notice of
Annual Ganeral Meating ("Notice”) to its shareholders by email. Shareholders of tha
Company who wish to receive the Company's Annual Report and Notice of Annual
Genaral Meeting by E-mail are requestad to provide the complete Electronic
Communication Consent Form (avallable at the Company's Website) to the
Company’'s Share Registrar.
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CHAIRMAN'S REVIEW

Dear Shareholders

it is a great pleasure for me to present the Chairman's Review on the owverall
performance of the Board. The collective efforts of the Board reflected through Annual
Report for tha financial year ended 30™ June, 2021.

Fortunately, our country has been less affected by COVID-19 as it navigated the
pandemic relatively well. The economy suffered during the pandemic but recovery
began at the mid of the reporting year. Economics activity has largely normalized with
an improvement in the overall business environment. The overall economic situation
along with well contained pandemic, the company has encouraging results.

The Country’s financial year has commenced with positive indicalors as business
activity gets back to normal and investor confidence is restored. The improved
vaccination drive has further raised hopes of curbing the effect of COVID 18 and aiding
the economics turnaround.

| wish to thank all stakeholders, for their untiring efforts in achieving good results under
difficult circumstances.

| am pleased to express that the overall performance of the Board remained
satisfaciory and the Directors have played their role effectively while fulfilling their
responsibilities in accordance with law and achleving the company’s objectives in the
best interest of the Shareholders.

FAISALABAD
06™ Octaber, 2021 CHAIRMAN
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

The directors of your Company have pleasure in presenting their reporl, together with
37" annual report of the Company containing Audited Financial Statements and
Auditors Reporl thereon for the year ended June 30, 2021.

Market Ovarviaw
Economic & Business Environment

The pandemic engulfed the whole world and ravaged the health care system of many
developed nations. Pakistan successfully dealt with waves of the COVID-19 with smart
lockdown and improved coniainment sirategies which aided in managing the reporied
cases and the resumption of aconomic activities.

The impact of the government's timely and appropriate measures |s visible In the form
of a v-ehaped economic recovery on the back of broad-based growth across all sectors.
The GDP growth rate for FY2021 stood at 3.94 percent, higher than the targeted growth
of 2.1 percent, for the outgoing fiscal year, The government is monitoring the country’s
situation aclively and is laking necessary measures to facilitate the overall Textile
Industry. The performance of manufacturing sector has been encouraging during the
year. Government monetary relief provided by SBP uplifted the bearish economic
environment during the period.

Company’s Performance

The Company's financial results have been positive and encouraging. During the
financial year ended June 30, 2021, company eamed a gross profit of Rs. 5.307 billion
on sales of Rs. 37.089 billion as compared to gross profit of Rs. 1.366 billion on sales of
Ras. 28,669 billion for the previous financial year ended by June 30, 2020. Sale of the
Company has increased by 29.37% from the previous financial year. This increase of
Textile Sector in Pakistan is performing well due lo mobust demand from the
international market. The Company recorded a net profit of Rs. 640.535 million (Eaming
per share: Rs. 9.06 per share), as compared to net loss of Rs. (4.120) billion (Loss per
share: Rs. (81.75) per share) for the last financial year. This outstanding recovery was
made possible with management's focused and committed efforts towards best
utilization of our resources in addition to the praiseworthy role of all our staff in making
the company profitable again through their untiring efforts. The comparative financial
results of the Company are reproduced hereunder:

@
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2020

(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

REVENUE 37,080,350 28,668,842
COST OF SALES (31,782.448) (27,302,890)
GROSS PROFIT 5,306,910 1,365,752
DISTRIBUTION COST (2,262,880) (2,149.418)
ADMINISTARTION EXPENSES (854,398) (716,404)
OTHER EXPENSES (313,068) (972,665)
OTHER INCOME 443,433 420,371
FINANCE COST (1,281.812) (1,699,286
PROFIT/ (LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION 1,038,187  (3.751,650)
TAXATION (387,652) (368,629}
PROFIT / (LOSS) AFTER TAXATION 640535  (4,120.279]
EARMNINGS/{LOSS) PER SHARE — BASIC (RUPEES) 9.06 (61.75)
- DILUTED (RUPEES) 8.24 (56.90)

Economic activity Is slowly getting back to normal and business confidence has
retumed. There has been tremendous increase in our gross profit from the last financial
year. During this period, which was dominated by the global spread of the COVID-19
pandemic, productions in Pakistan, by and large, remained undisrupted as compared to
many other textile producing countries. Resultantly, there was a major shift of demand
to Pakistan from international markets.

The Govemment handling of the COVID-19 situation as well as the support to the
manufacturing sector in general by the State bank of Pakistan instilled a lot of
confidence in the manufacturing sector. Govemment favorable reforms for the
sustainable growth have built investor's confidence and allowed the local industry to
flourish in local and intemational market.

Future Plans:

Government is taking positive steps which will help to boost the competitivenass of
Pakistan's economy and lay a strong foundation for more robust and sustainable
recovery. The support provided by the State Bank of Pakistan in terms of the
concessionary finance for long term Investments has also encouraged the sector to

expand tremendously.
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Subject to ongoing economic stability and the impacts of COVID-19 being kept under
control, the company strongly believes its management team and factory workforces
fogether with our customers’ businesses remaining healthy will ensure thal sales
targets for the coming year will be achieved.

The major challenge for the textile indusiry is low production of cofion as compare to
domestic requirement which has resulted increasa in cotton prices. anticipated import of
cotion would pracfically neutralize the impact of higher textile exports. That would cost
heavily to a country that struggling to reduce trade deficit. Moreover, mounting dollar-
rupee dispanty s another worry which would increase the cost of imported cotton and
necessary inputs. We therefore urge the Government to take further remedial measures
to ensure that economy stays on the right path.

Dividend

The directors in ks meeting have not proposed payment of ordinary dividend due to
financlal constraints and working capital requirements.

The Company had issued 60.000 million Preference Shares of the value of Rupees
600.000 million, redemplion of these preference shares after the expiry of their maturity
is at the option of the Company. Preference dividend Is payable on the basis of the
average six months KIBOR+200 bps per annum and accordingly Preference Dividend
{accumulated) of Rupee 1.53 per share financial year 2020 and Rupees 0.93 for
financial year 2021 has been computed against balance of 31,166,668 Preferance
shares,

Corporate Governance

The board of directors and management are aware of their responsibilities under the
Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Reguilation 2019 and Rule Book of
Pakistan Stock Exchange. The company remains committed to the principles of good
corporate management practice with emphasis on transparency and disclosures. Your
Company is cognizant to monitor its operations and performance to enhance the
?nuf?mr?awﬂé comprehensiveness and ftransparency of financial and non-financial

n.

In compliance of corporate laws, the Board Member / Directors are pleased to confim
the followings:

a) The financlal statement prepared by the management of the Company present
fairly its state of affairs, the result of its operations, cash flows and change in
equity.

b) Proper books of accounts have been maintained.

¢) Appropriale accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of
the financial staterent and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and
prudent judgment.
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d) International Financial Reporting Standard, as applicable in Pakistan, have been
followed in the preparation of financial statements.

8) The system of internal conltrols is sound in design and has been effectively
implemented and monitored.

f) There are no significant doubts upon the company’s ability to continue as going
cancern.

g) Statement of pattern of Shareholding has been included as part of this annual report.
Key Operating and Financial Data

The key operating and financial data for last six years Is given in this report.
Composition of the Board

In line with the requirements of the Code of Corporate Govemnance, the company
encourages representation of independent and non-executive directors, as well gender
diversity on its Board.

The composition of the Board Is as follows:

Total Number of Directors: 7 including

(a) Male 06

(b) Female 01
Composition of the Board:

(a) Independent Directors 02

(b) Non-Executive Directors 04

(c) Executive Director 01

Board of Directors Meetings

Four meetings of the Board of Directors were held during the financial year, with the
following attendance:

No. of

Sr. No. Name of Directors Designation Meetings

Attended
1- Mr. Naseer Ahmad Shah Chairman 4
2- Mr. Shahid Nazir Ahmad Chief Executive Officer 4
3- Mr. Shabir Ahmad Abid Independent Director 4
4- Mr. Shahid Igbal Independent Director 4

5- Mr. Shoaib Ahmad Khan

(Nominea- NIT) Director 3
6-  Miss Chen Yan Director 2

{Momines - Shanghai Challanga Tex Co.Ltd.)
7- Mr.Shibin Yang
{Nominss - Shanghal Challangs TexCo.ltd) Director 3

@®
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Audit Committee Meetings

Five meslings of the Audit Commitiee were held during the financial year, with the following
attendance:

Sr. No. Name of Members Designation | MNo. of Meeting
Attended
1-  Mr. Shabir Ahmad Abid Chairman 5
2-  Mr. Naseer Ahmad Shah Member 5
3-  Mr. Shahid Igbal Member 5

Human Resource & Remuneration Commiitee

One meeting of the Human Resource & Remunseration Committee was held during the
financial year, with the following attendance:

Sr. No. Name of Members Designation | No. of Meating
Attended
1- Mr. Shahid Igbal Chalrman 1
2- Mr. Shahid Nazir Ahmad Member 1
3- Mr. Shabir Ahmad Abid Member 1
Risk Management Committee

One meeting of the Risk Management Committee was held during the financial year,
with the following attendance:

Sr. No. Name of Members Designation | No. of Meeting
Attended

1- Mr. Shahid Nazir Ahmad Chairman 1

2- Mr. Shahid Igbal Member 1

3 Mr. Naseer Ahmad Shah Member 1

D)
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Nomination Committee

One mesting of the Nomination Committee was held during the financial year,
with the following attendance:

Sr. No. Name of Members Designation | No. of Meeting
Attended

1 Mr. Naseer Ahmad Shah Chairman 1

A Mr. Shahid Igbal Member 1

3- Mr. Shabir Ahmad Abid Member 1

The Board is responsible for making decision with respect to important management
matters, including the execution of important business activities and other matters as
prescribed by law. These decisions are made after deliberating such matter according
to the established criteria, assessing risks and giving such matters due consideration.
The Board Is also responsible for supervising and monitoring the conduct of duties.

Director's Remuneration

The Board of Directors has dewised the policy for the determination of remuneration.
Following are its salient features.

The Company will not pay any remuneration to its Non-Executive Directors except as
meeting fee for attending the Board and its committee meetings.

The remuneration of directors and meeting fee shall be determined and approved by
the Board of Directors. Remuneration package is designed to attract suitable candidate
and talent on the Board.

A Director is provided or reimbursed for all travelling, boarding, lodging and other
expenses incurred by him for attending meetings of the Board, its committees.

Adequacy of Internal and Financlal Contrais

The Board of Directors has established an effective system of Internal and Financial
Controls that ensure:

Effective and efficient conduct of operations

Safeguarding company assels

Compliance with applicable Laws and Regulations

Reliable Financial Reporting

Intemal audit function of the Company regularly appraises and monitors the
implementation of Standard Operating Procedures and respective financial controls.
Internal audit reports are presented to the Audit Committee, as per intemal audit plan.
Accordingly, the Audit Committee reviews the effectiveness of the intemal control
framework and financial statement in its meetings.

@
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External Auditors

The auditor's M/s Riaz Ahmed & Company, Chartered Accountants, retires and being
eligible, has offered themselves for their re-appointment. The Audit Committee, the Board of
Directors has recommended their re-appointment as auditors of the Company for the next
financlal year ending 30"June, 2022.

Health, Safety, Environment and CSR

Health, Safety & Environment is our core value and the Company regularly takes initiatives
towards the improvement of environment and well-being of society. We camy out regular
health and safety awareness programs. The Company has also provided firefighting
equipment and vehicles at all of its manufacturing facilities. A dedicated clinic/dispensary are
managed by the qualified team where 24/7 emergency services are provided. Furthermore,
In an effort to combat the COVID-19's Impact on society, the Company Is fully compliant with
all SOPs. Vaccination drive was arranged for the employees in order to ensure health and
safety of the employees. We also ensure the compliance of our production facility with all the
aenvironmental standards.

CSR is strategic, building long term relationships with neighboring communities and
stakeholders. Relationships that are mutually beneficial enhance corporate reputation and
respect for the Company's business and products, and provide a sustainable competitive
advantage.

Acknowledgement

The Directors would take this opportunity to appreciate the efforts made by the workers, staff
and the management for achieving these results in the unprecedented difficult circumstances
and also grateful for the continued support of Company's stakeholders especially to the
shareholders, bankers and its customers. | would also take this opportunity to express my
gratitude to the Board for their valuable insight and guidance.

FAISALABAD
06™October, 2021 CHEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER DIRECTOR
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SIX YEARS FINANCIAL RESULTS
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
s s [RUPEES IN THOUSAND)..... SRS
REVENLUE 37,069,358 25,668,642 M.211370 20,842, 150 23303,876 23,183 485
COST OF SALES (31,782,449)  (27302,880) (30417532) (26980,855) (20008582) (18871238
GROSS PROFIT 5,306 510 1,385 752 3,783 84T 3851 304 3,385,284 3.H2 247
DISTRIBUTION COST (2,26:2,680) (2, 143.418) (2448 678) (2,063,381) {1,478,067) {1,396,012)

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES (854,208 (748.404) (897 574) (548,235) {480,722) (472,518)

OTHER EXPENSES (313,068) (872,685) (48, B48) (108,238) {10,675) (48,844)
OTHER INCOME 443,433 420,371 2353372 1,070,524 218,041 241,212
FINANCE COST (1.281,812) (1.609.208) (1.208.112) (&06, 385) {640,673) (T18,568)
PROFITALDES] BEFORE TAXATION 1,038,187  (3,751,650) 1,748,108 1,304,578 553,188 17,718




Wt T Ml Ll

VISION STATEMENT

A leading producer of textile products by providing the highest quality of products and servicas
to its customers,

To strive excellence through commitment, integrity, honesty and team work.

Highly ethical company and be respected corporate citizen to continue playing due role in the
soclal and environmental sectors of the company.

To develop and extremely motivated and professional trained work force, which would drive
growth through innovation and renovation.

Sustained growth in earning in real terms.

MISSION STATEMENT

Our mission Is fo be a dynamic, profitable and growth orlented company by providing good
retum on Investment to its shareholders and investors, quality products to its customers, a
secured and friendly environment place of work to its employees and to project Pakistan's
image in the intermmational market.
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Statement of Compliance with Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019
Name of Company Masood Textile Mills Limited
Year Ending 30" June, 2021
The company has complied with the Requirements of the Regulations in the
following manner:;
1. The total number of directors are Seven (7) as per the following:

a Six  (B) Male
b. One (1) Female

2. The composition of board is as follows:

1) Mr. Shabir Ahmad Abid Independent Directors
2) Mr. Shahid Igbal Indepandent Diractors
3) Mr. Naseer Ahmad Shah Non-executive Directors
4) Mr. Shibin Yang Non-executive Directors

5) Mr. Shoiab Ahmad Khan MNon-executive Directors
6) Mr. Shahid Nazir Ahmad Executive Director
7) Ms. Chen Yan Female Director

3. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more
than seven listed companies, including this company.

4, The company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate
steps have been taken to disseminate it throughout the company along with its
supporting policies and procedures.

5. The board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy
and significant policies of the company. The Board has ensured that complete record
of particulars of significant palicies along with their date of approval or updating is
maintained by the Company.

6. All the powers of the board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant
matters have been laken by board/ shareholders as empowered by the relevant
provisions of the Act and these Regulations,

7. The meetings of the board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his
absence, by a director elected by the board for this purpose. The board has
complied with the requirements of Act and the Regulations with respect to frequency,
recording and circulating minutes of meeting of board.

@



Wt T Ml Ll

8. The board have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of
directors in accordance with the Act and these Regulations.

9. Three Board members has already completed Directors’ Training Program for
following directors namad as

» Mr. Shabir Ahmad Abid
» Mr. Shahid Igbal
» Mr. Naseer Ahmad Shah

and one Board member named as Mr. Shahid Naseer Ahmad is exempted from
Directors’ Training Program, the criteria of minimum of 14 years of education and 15
years of experience on the Boards of listed companies. The Board has amanged
Directors’ Training Program for three non-Executive Directors during the year named

» Mr. Shibin Yang
« Ms. Chen Yan
» Mr. Shoiab Ahamd Khan

and also for one Female Executive during the year named as

» Ms. Asma Aleem (DGM Spinning)
10. The board has approved appointment of Chief Financial Officer, Company
Secretary and Head of Intemal Audit, including their remuneration and terms and
conditions of employment and complied with relevant requiremenis of the
Regulations.

11. Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive Officer duly endorsed the financial
statements before approval of the board.

12. The board has formed committees comprising of members given below:

a) Audit Committee

i} Mr. Shabir Ahmad Abid {Chairman)
il) Mr. Naseer Ahmad Shah {Member)
iii} Mr. Shahid Igbal (Member
b) HR and Remuneration Commitiee

i) Mr. Shahid Igbal (Chairman)
i) Mr. Shahid Nazir Ahmad {(Member)
iiiy Mr. Shahbir Ahmad Abid {Member)

®
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¢) Nomination Committee

i) Mr. Naseer Ahmad Shah (Chairman)
i} Mr. Shabir Ahmad Abid (Member)
i) Mr. Shahid Igbal (Member)
d} Risk Management Commitiee

i) Mr. Shahid Nazir Ahmad (Chairman)
ii) Mr. Naseer Ahmad Shah (Member)
ii) Mr. Shahid Igbal (Member)

13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed,
documented and advised to the commitiee for compliance.

14, The frequency of meetings of the committee were as per following.
a) Audit Committee:

Five meetings of Audit Committee were held during the financial year ended June
30, 2021.

b) HR and Remuneration Committee:

One meeting of HR and Remuneration Commititee was held during the
financial year ended June 30, 2021.

¢} Nomination Committee:

One meeting of Nomination Committee was held during the financial year
ended June 30, 2021.

d) Risk Management Commitiee

One meeting of Risk Management Committee was held during thefinancial year
ended June 30, 2021.

15. The board has set up an effective intamnal audit function, which are considerad
suitably qualified and experienced for the purpose and are conversant with the
policies and procedures of the company.

16. The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given

a satisfactory rating under the quality control review program of the Institute of
Chartered Accounlants of Pakistan and registered with Audit Oversight Board of
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Pakistan, that they and all their partners are in compliance with International
Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and that they and the pariners of the
firm involved in the audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and
non-dependent children) of the chief executive officer, chief finance officer, head of
internal audit, company secretary or director of the company;

17. The statutory auditors or the persons assoclated with them have not been
appointed to provide other services except in accordance with the Act, these
regulations or any other regulatory requirement and the auditors have confirmed that
thay have obsarved IFAC guidelines in this regard.

18. We confirm that all other requirements of the Regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33
and 36 of the regulations have been complied with, except for the Independent
directors in which fraction is not rounded up as one because the fraction (0.33) was
less than 0.5.

Falsalabad
06™ Octobaer, 2021 Chilef Exscutive Officer Director
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REVIEW REPORT
To the members of Masood Textile Mills Limited

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contalned In Listed Companles
(Code of Corporate Govarnanca) Regulations, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies
{Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the
Board of Directors of Masood Textile Mills Limited (the Company) for the year ended 30
June 2021 in accordance with the requirements of Regulation 36 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of
the Company. Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects
the status of the Company's compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if
it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A
review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Company's personnel and review of various
documents prepared by the Company to comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtaln an understanding
of the accounting and intemal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an
effective audit approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors’
statement on intemal control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the
effectiveness of such intemal controls, the Company's corporate govemnance procedures
and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon
recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their
review and approval, its related party transactions. We are only required and have ensured
compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions
by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the
Statement of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company’'s compliance, in all
material respects, with the requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to tha
Company for the year ended 30 June 2021,

RIAZ AHMAD & COMPANY
Chartered Accountants
Falsalabad

Date: 06 October, 2021
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE SUKUK (PRIVATELY PLACED) REGULATIONS,
2017 AND ISSUE OF SUKUK REGULATIONS, 2015

This statement is being presented to comply with the requirements under "issue of Sukuk
Regulations, 2015" and “Sukuk (Privately Placed) Regulations, 2017" (the Regulations) issued
by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP). This Statement of
Compliance is for the year ended 30 June 2021.

Masood Textile Mills Limited entered Into an arrangement for lss ue of Sukuk amounting to Rs. 2,500
Million inclusive of Green Shoe Option of PKR 1,000 Million, on December 08, 20189 for a period of 5
years including a grace period of 18 months, We state that the Company is in compliance with the
Sukuk Features and Sharia'ah Requirements in accordance with the Regulations.

We specifically confirm that:

The Company has established policles and procedures for all Sukuk related transactions to comply
with Sukuk Features and Shari'ah Requirements.

The Company has implemented and maintained such intemal control and risk management sysiems
that are necessary to mitigate the risk of non-compliances of the Sukuk Features and Shari'ah
Requirements, whether due fo fraud or error;

The Company has a process to ensure that the management and where appropriate the Board of
Directors, and personnel responsible to ensure the Company's compliance with the Sukuk Features
and Shar'ah Requirements are properly trained and systems are properly updated.

The Sukuk Fealures and Shar'ah Requirements in accordance with issue of the Regulations
comprises of the following:

2. Requirements of Shariah Structure and Transaction Documents to lssuance of Sukuk:

= Trust Deed

*» Musharka Agreemants

* Payment Agreemants

 Purchase Undertaking

» Assat Purchase Agreamant

= Investment Agency Agreement

= Collection arrangement Agreement
« Sacurity Documents

b. Guidelines of the relevant Shariah Standards, issued by the Accounting and Auditing Omganization
of the Islamic Financial Institutions, as notified by the SECP;

c. Requirements of the relevant Islamic Financial Accounting Standard as notified by the SECP; and
d. Other compliances specified in the Regulations as issued by the SECP.
The above Statemant has been duly endorsad by the Board of Directors of the Company.
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INDEPENDENT ASSURANCE REPORT
To the Board of Directors of Masood Textile Mills Limited
Report on Shari'ah Compliance of Privately Placed Sukuk

Introduction

We were engaged by the Board of Directors (the Board) of Mascod Textile Mills Limited
{the Company) to express an opinion on the annexed Statement of Complianca (Statement)
preparad by the management for the year ended 30 June 2021, with Sukuk Features and
Shari‘ah Requirements as required under Issue of Sukuk Regulations, 2015 (repealed) and
Sukuk (Privately Placed) Regulations, 2017 (the Regulations) and Shari'ah Opinion (Fatwa)
as issued by the Shari'ah Advisor and to the extenl applicable, the guidelines of Shari'ah
Standards Issued by Accounting and Auditing Organization for Islamic Financial Institutions
{(AADIFI), in all material respects.

Applicable Criteria

The criteria against which the subject matter information (the statement) is assessed
comprises of the provisions of the Regulations and Shari'ah Opinion (Fatwa) as issued by
the Shari'ah Advisor.

Company’s Responsibilities for Shari'ah Compliance

The Board and management of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
annexed Statement and to ensure that it is free from material misstatement. It is the
responsibility of the Company's Board and management to ensure that all Sukuk
arrangements, contracts and transactions are in substance and in their legal form, in
compliance with the Sukuk Features and Shari'ah Requirements as specified above. The
Company's Board and management are responsible for prevention and detection of fraud
and for Identifying and ensuring that the Company complies with laws and regulations
applicable to its Sukuk ralated activities and also for designing, implamentation and
maintenance of appropriate internal control procedures with respect to such compliance
and maintenance of relevant records and such risk managemsant systam as the
management determines |s necessary o mitigata the risk of non-compliance of Sukuk
Features and Shari'ah requirements whether due to fraud or error. They are also
responsible for ensuring that personnel involved with the compliance with the Sukuk
Features and Shari'ah Requirements are properly trained and systems are properly
updated.

Qur Independaence and Quality Control

We are Independent of the Company In accordance with the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountanis as adopted by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and wa have fulfilled our othar
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. The firms apply International standard
on Quality Control 1 "Quality Contrel for Firms That Perform Audits and Reviews of
Historical Financial Statements, And Other Assurance and Related Service
Engagements” and accordingly maintain a comprehensive system of quality control including
documentad policies and procedures regarding compliance with ethical requiremants,
professional standards and applicable legal and regulatory requirements.
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Our Responsibilities

Qur responsibility is to examine the annexad Statement prepared by managemant and to
raport thereon in the form of independent assurance conclusion based on the evidance
obtained. We conducted our engagement in accordance with International Standards on
Assurance Engagements (ISAE) 3000, "Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or
Reviews of Historical Financial Information®, issued by the International Auditing and
Assurance Slandards Board of the International Federation of Accountants. The Standards
requires that we plan and perform the engagement to obtain reascnable assurance
regarding the subject matter i.e. about whether the annexed Statement presents fairly the
status of compliance with Sukuk Features and Shari'ah Requirements as required under the
Requlation and Shari'ah Opinion (Fatwa) issued by Shari'ah Advisor and to the extent
applicable, the guidelines of Shari'ah Standards issued by AAQIFI, in all material respects.

The procedures selected depend on our prefessional judgement including the
assessment of the risk of the Company's non-compliance with the Sukuk Features and
Shari'ah Requirements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessment, we
have considared Internal control relevant to ensure compliance with Sukuk Featuras and
Shar'ah Requirements, in order to design assurance procadures that are appropriate in tha
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing a conclusion as to the effecliveness of
the Company's intarnal control ovar ansuring complianca with Sukuk Faatures and Shari'ah
Requiramants.

A system of internal control, because of its nature, may not prevent or detect all Instances
of non-compliance with Sukuk Features and Shari'ah Requirements, and consequently
cannot provide absolute assurance that the objective of compliance with Sukuk Features
and Shari'ah Requirement will ba mat,

The proceduras performed includad;

s Evaluation of the systems, procedures and practices in place with respect to Sukuk
related transactions against the Features and Shari'ah Requiremeants;

s Verification that payments werea made on time and there was no delay;

= Test for a sample of transactions to help ensure that these are carried oul in accordance
with the laid down procedures and practices; and

= Review of the Statement based on our procedures performed and conclusion reached.

Conclusion

Our conclusion has baen formed on the basis of, and subject lo, the matters oullined in the
report. We believe that the evidence we have cbiained is sufficient and appropriate lo
provide a basis of our conclusion.

In our opinion, the annexed Statement preparad by managemant, for the year ended 30 Juna
2021, presents fairly the statlus of compliance with Sukuk Fealures and Shari'ah
Requirements as raquired under the Regulation and Shar'ah Opinion (Fatwa) lssued by
Shari'ah Advisor, and to tha axtant applicable, the guidaelines of Shari'ah Standards issuad by
AADIFL, in all matenial respects.

RIAZ AHMAD & COMPANY
Charterad Accountants

Faisalabad
Date: 08 October, 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the members of Masood Textile Mills limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

Wa have audited the annexad financlal stataments of Masood Taxtila Mille Limited (the
Company), which comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2021, and the
statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of
changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and noles to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policles and other
axplanatory Information, and we state that we have obtained all the Information and
axplanations which, to the bast of our knowledge and belief, wera necassary for the
purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given o
us, the statement of financlal position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of
comprehensive Income, the statement of changes In equity and the statement of cash flows
togather with the notes forming part thereof conform with tha accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies
Agt, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair
view of the staie of the Company's affairs as at 30 June 2021 and of the profit, other
comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinlen

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as
applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilites under those standards are further described In
tha Auditor's Rasponsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statemants saction of our report.
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfiled our other
ethical responsibliities in accordanca with tha Code. We balieve that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion,

Key Audit Matters

Kay audit matters are thosa matters that, in our professional judgment, wera of most
significance In our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These mafters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
Following are the key audit matters:

Sr. | Key audit matters How the matters were addressed In our

Ne. audit

1. | Inventory existence and Our procedures over existence and valuation of
valuation Inventories Included, but ware not imitad fo;
Inventories at 30 June 2021 s To test the quantity of inventories at all
amounting to Rupees 13,528.032 locations, we gssessed the
million, break up of which Is as comesponding  inventory  observation

follows: instructions and participated in invantory

@
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Key audit matters

How the matters were addressed In our

- Storas, spare parts and

loose tools of Rupees
2,244 531 million

- Stock In trade of Rupees
11,283.501 million

Invantories are stated at lower of
cost and net realizable valus.

We Iidentified existence and
valuation of inventories as a key
audit matter due to its size,
raprasenting 33.48% of folal
gssets of the Company as at 30
dJune 2021, and the judgment
invelved in valuation.

For further information on
invantories, rafar to the following:

- Summary of significant
accounting policias,
Invantories (Note 2.8 to the
financial statements).

- Stores, spare parts and
loose tools {Note 17) and
Stock in trade (Note 1B) to

counts on sites. Based on samples, we
parformed test counts and compared the
quantities counted by us with the resuits
of the counts of the managament.

For a sample of inventory items, re-
performed the weighled average cost
calculation and compared the weightad
everage cost appearing on valualtion
sheets.

On a sample basis, we testad the nat
realizable value of Inventory items to
recent selling prices and re-performed
the calculaton of the nventory wrte
dowm, if any.

In the context of our testing of the
calculation, we analyzed individual cost
components and tracad them back to the

comasponding underlying documents.

We also made inquines from
managaement, including thoee cutside of
tha finance function, and considered the
results of our testing above to determine

We also assessed the adequacy of the

the financlal statements. disclosures made in respect of the
accounting policies and related notes to
the financial statements.
2. | Revenue recognition

The Company recognized revenue
of Rupees 37,080.358 million for
the year ended 30 June 2021.

We identified recognition of
revenue as a key audit matter
because revenue s one of the key
performance indicators of the
Company and gives nse lo an
inharent sk that revenue could ba
subject to misstatemant to masat

expectations or targets.

Qur procedures included, but were not limited
to:

We obtained an understanding of the
process relating lo recognilion of
revenue and testing the design,
implementation and operating
gffectiveness of key intemal controls
over recording of revenue.

We compared a sample of revenue
transactions recorded during the year
with sales orders, sales Invoices,

@
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Sr. | Key audit matters How the matiers were addressed In our
No. audit

delivery documents and other relevant
For further information on revenue underlying documents.

recognition, refer to the following:
« We compared &8 sampla of revenue

- Summary of significant transactions recorded around the year-
accounting policies, end with the sales orders, sales invoices,
Revenue from contracts with delivery dosuments and other relevant

customers (Note 2.12 to the underying documentation to assess if

financial statements). the related revenue was recorded In the
- R (Note 25 to the appropriate accounting period.
financial statements).

+ We assessad whether the accounting
policias for revenue recognition complies
with the requirements of IFRS 15
'Revanue from Contracts with
Customars’.

» We compared the detail of a sample of
joumal entries posted 1o revenue
accounts during tha year, which mat
certain spacific risk-based criteria, with
the relevant underlying documentation.

= We also considered the appropriateness
of discloguree In the financial
statemants.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Therson
Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the

information included in the annual report, but doas not include the financial statemants and
our auditor's report theraon.

Qur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

in connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
incongistant with the financial statemants or our knowladga obtained in the audit or
otharwize appaars to ba matarially misstated. If, basad on the work wa have parformad, wa
concluda that there is a matenal misstatement of this other information, we are required to
raport that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in

)



Wt T Ml Ll

Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal
contrel as managemeant determines is nacessary lo anabla tha preparation of financial
statements that are free from materal misstatement, whether due o fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's abllity to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concem and using the going concemn basis of accounting unless management
aither intands to liquidate the Company or to cease oparations, or has no reallstic
alternative but to do so.

Board of directors Is responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are o obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financlal statements
as a whole are free from malerial misstatement, whether due to fraud or emor, and to issue
an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but Is not a guarantee that an audit conducted In accordance with ISAs as
applicable In Pakistan will always detect a materal misstatement when H exisis.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or armor and are considered material if, indhidually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
usars taken on the basis of thase hnancial statemants.

As part of an audil in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we gxercise
profassional judgment and malintain professional skepticlam throughout the audit. We also:

" idantify and assass the risks of matarial misstatemant of the financial stalamants,
whathar due to fraud or amor, dasign and parform audit proceduras responsive to thosa
risks, and obtaln audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud Is higher than
for one resulting from amor, as fraud may involve callusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the ovemride of internal conirol.

. Obtain an understanding of intemal control relevant to the audit in order o dasign
audit procedurss that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectivenass of the Company's intemal control.

. Evaluata the appropriatenass of accounting policies usad and the reasonablanass of
accounting estimates and related disclosuras made by management.

. Concluda on tha appropriatenass of managament's use of tha going concam basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a materal uncartainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concam. if wa conciude that a material uncartainty exists, we
are required to draw attention In our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
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conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up o the date of our auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease o continua as a
going concarn.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,. including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

VWa also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relavant
ethical requiremenis regarding Independence, and fto communicate with them all
melationships and other matiers that mey meesonably ba thought o bear on our
Indepaendence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the mattars communicated with tha board of directors, we datermine those matters
that were of most significanca in the audit of the financial statements of the current pariod
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters In our auditor's report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in axtramaly
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
bacause the adverse consaquences of doing so would reasonably be axpeacted to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legzl and Regulatory Requiremenis

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the
Companles Act, 2017 (XIX( of 2017);

b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows
together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companias Act,
2017 (XX of 2017) and ara in agreament with the books of account and returns;

c} invesiments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees exitended during the year
were for the purpose of the Company’s business; and

d) no Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1880 (XVIlI
of 1980).

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Liagat
All Panwar.

RIAZ AHMAD ECOMPANY
Chartered Accountants

Faisalabad
Date: 06 October, 2021



EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

SHARE CAPITAL AND REBERVES
Austhortosd share capitsl

125 000 000 (2026 125 000 000} cndinary shares of Rupess 10 aach
60 00D 00O [2020; 60 000 000) preference shares of Rupees 10 sach

Imad, subscribaed and pald up shars capital
Rawerves

Capitsl resorves

Ehalimy DTN

Radamption fund

Capital confritution

Surplua an nevalislion of feahald lend

R e Mssaryss
Tolsl reaorves

Tolal squity
LLABILITIES

HON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Long term financing

Short term bomowings
Current portion of non-curment Babliites
Prowigion for teation

TOTAL LIABILITIES
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIER

Tha anrmeed notss form an integral part of those fnencisl stetemants.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE CFRCER
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

NOTE

4.1
4.3
4.2
4.4

L R ]

10
Lk
12

13

nM 220
{RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

1.250,000 1,250,000
600,000 600,000
—ES0000 _____1BS3.000
986,666 086, 65
1,375,000
128,323
1,500,000
2447552
5,450,885 3,050,885
4,467 T30 3872 614
8,018,515 7,423,400
10,905,281 8,810,165
6,007,811 7,254 528
84.7TT 210.M2
| 984,354
6,190,314 5,429,592
4,068,142 2430,344
11,146 65,262
47 B2 .
160,184 304,784
15,011,000 15,35, 660
2,733,202 862,473
_ﬁﬁ T 1B,767.352
20,502,124 28,156, 944
0,407 AT 38,507,100
DIRECTOR
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POSITION AS AT 30 JUNE 2021
NOTE i 2020
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
ABBETSE
NON-CURRENT ARBETS
FPropady, plant and squipment 14 13,585,405 13,842,031
Right-ol-use sseols 15 204,109 320,505
Long orm advances 16 460 a.060
Lok tairm sacairilty depoils B7.881 Ba.TTS
13,998,864 14,030,371
CURRENT ARSETS
Siores, spene parts ard loose tools 17 2, 20d 531 2247 BT4
Slock in trada 18 11,283, 501 8,125,188
Trade debls 19 T 438,280 7, T AE
Loans and advances 20 B34 462 537 Ba6
Inoome o a3, 00 #3306
Bhorl term deposits and prepaymsns 21 £26, 064 130, 72T
Cihee ecaivables 23 3,183,017 1834, 186
Shorl term invvesbments 23 108,771 203218
Cash and bank baiancos 24 530,831 173,014
28,508,541 22 95T, 738
TOTAL ASSETS 40,407,405 38,9497 109
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

NOTE 2021 2020
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

REVENUE 25 37,089,359 28,668,642
COST OF SALES 26 (31,782,449) (27,302,890)
GROSS PROFIT 5,306,910 1,365,752
DISTRIBUTION COST 27 (2.262,880) (2,149,418}
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 28 (854,396) (716,404)
OTHER EXPENSES 28 (313,068) (972,665)
OTHER INCOME 30 443,433 420,371
FINANCE COST 31 (1,281,812) (1,699,286)
PROFIT / (LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION 1,038,187 (3,751,650)
TAXATION 32 (397 652) (368 629)
PROFIT / {LOSS) AFTER TAXATION 640,535 (4,120,279}
EARNINGS / (LOSS) PER SHARE - BASIC (RUPEES) 33 9.08 (61.75)

- DILUTED (RUPEES) 33 B.24 {56.90)

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER DIRECTOR CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER



STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021
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[RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

PROFIT / (LOSS) AFTER TAXATION 640,535 (4,120,279)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
ltems that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:

Remeasursments arising on defined benefit obligation 2.263 20,823

Surplus on revaluation of freehold land - 1,547,318

2,263 1,967,841

ltems that may ba reclassifled subsequently to profit or loss - -
Other comprehensive income for the year 2,263 1,567,941
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME / (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 642,708 (2,552 338)
The annaxed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER DIRECTOR CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

®
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

RERSRYEA
CAATAL REVEMUE
fLTE — oA
GATAL | Sew | Rudesplion | Capfel matesin o Skt | Gonunt Urmpproprintec | o TOTAL | Ty
[ristiss bl | s — ekl
{IFEED N THOURMD

Daliwca s al 0] Aoy IR T R T B - WOXd AR THS0 LM ANTSN 1SN 1ARTN
Towrmact ora with Jeree
Dl o g i F P 150 e i [y i) E = - - MOL3S  (WLsSa) (W2sE (LG
Dl ot Pt o Fupoen 106 por shue [Probnrcn e - - - e
Lo o e your - - - - wingm o, (120,29 W20
Oy crpeienshe noe b e yer £ : 15718 | 154730 MER| XRS5 | (N7 oM
Trinl commpriaraive ko o e year - - 1ET 1R 156030 PR RSE) OGRS (SRR (LY
Bl o ol 3 Jum 2230 bl R e R R - LMTSE I9MEE]  TMID 0 LM JAREM  TEDAE LN IEE
Trrmactors wih cerse:
Conirbaaioe, from drwcicr | aharslidany . 15 15050 . - L e
il . G o of P .53 oo s (Prolenncs ghima) - - - - MTAET  MTEAN, WD WTAED
Predit o i yar = BIOSE | MANENS| BNOSN| sOEN
o enraianave ot e e year E - 250 bl . 1m ¥ -]
Telal il It e yeur + * = = BOR  BETRE  BOUME  BETH
Balancw o ot M Joom 234 SNE TIEDN IMED 1EONO BATSRD SEMM THMED 0 LW LBUTM BNELME W

T eaieeied il formm i g i of s firmacinl skaioemminia.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

DIRECTOR

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cagh gangrated from oparations

Financa cost paid

Markup paid against laese llablities

Incoma tax pakd

Dividand pald 1o ordinary sharsholdars
Dhvidend paid to praferance sharsholders

Grafuity pald

Mot decrease [ (increass) In long term advanoes

Mat decraasa / (increasa) In long term eecurity deposiis

Not cash used in operating activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Procsads from sale of proparty, plant and aguipmant
Capital expenditure on property, plant and eguipment
Procaeds from disposal of Investment

Met cazh used in investing acthvities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceads from long term financing
Rapaymant of long tarm financing
Capital confribution
Repayment of loase abiitios
Short term borrowings - met

Net cash from financing activities

NET (DECREASE) / INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING

OF THE YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF
THE YEAR (NOTE 24)

Tha annexed notas form an integral parl of thasa finansial stataments.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

DIRECTOR

NOTE

M

2021 2020
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
1,903,605 1,601,208
(1.451,528) (1,537,128)
(18,845) {24,998)
(326,875) {354,539)
(54,118) (69.201)
- (33,086)
(219,742) {77,377)
/a1 (7, 400)
aad (23.264)
(185,817 (5286,685)
27,488 595,588
(942, 948) (2,385,083)
08,447 {103,218
(818,031) {1,882,733)
1,003,674 1,087,377
(1,161,852) {1,270.297)
1,600,000 a
(174,157} {140,605)
{824 860) 1,666,484

242 785 3,211,989

(B42,083) 7492551
1,173.014 JB0 483
530,831 1,173,014

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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B)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

THE COMPANY AND ITS GPERATIONS

Masood Texille Mills Limited I8 & public limifed company Incomporated under the Companies Act, 1913 (Now Companies Act,
2017) and listad on Pakistan Stack Exchange Limited (PSX). Hs mgltered offics i shuated &1 Univorgal Halss, P-1711, New
Civil Lines, Bllal Road, Faksalabad, The maln objects of the Company are manufaciuring and sale of cotion [ synthedic fber
yam, knitied [ dyad fabrica and ganmants.

Geographical locations and addresaca of all business units (exsept for the registered office) of the Company are a3 Tollows:

Manufscturing units and offices Addrass

Spinning, Knikting and Dyaing units 32 Kilomalers, Shaixhupurs Road, Faisalabad

Spinning Unit Satyana Road, Faisalabad

Sphning Uini 3 Kilomabars, Shorkal Read, Toba Tek Singh

Stfiching Undt Samodna Road, Faisalabad

Stiching Units Nishatabed, Faisalabad

Sliiching Linit Chak Jhumre Road, Mishatebad, Falealabad

Stilching Unils Hajiabed, Sheikhupura Road, Faisalabsd

Stitching Unit Frisalabad Garments City Compary, Khurmisnwala, Faisalabad
Lisison offioa 13 Kllomadars, Bhubafian Chowk, Defenca Road, Lahom
Linison office Otfice No, 308 - 307, Gul Tower, LI, Chundrigar Road, Kerach|

BUMMARY OF BIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Tha significant acoounting polickes appad in the preparation of thesa financlal slalements e sat out below. Theas policies
have been consistently applied to all years presented, unless othensise stated:

Basls of preparstion

Statement of compEance

Thess inencial elalamants have been preparad in pecordanca with tha accounting and repodting slandards a8 applicabla in
Paklstan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable In Pakdstan comprise of;

- Intemational Financlal Reporting Standands (IFRSs) tesusd by the infemational Accounting Standards Board (LASE) and
Istarmic Financial Accounting Standards (IFASS) issved by tha Inafitils of Charered Ascountants of Palistan (ICAP), a8
notifled under the Companies Act, 201T; and

- Previsions of and directives lssued undar the Companias Act, 201 T.

Whemn provisions of and directives msuad under the Compansas Act, 2017 differ Trom tha [FRSs and IFASS, tha proviskons of
&nd directives isaued under the Companies Acl 2017 have bean Tellowed,

Ancounting conmmntion

Thesa finencl siatements have bean prepemed under ihe histoncal cost commniion, axoapt s otherwise statoed in espactive
eccounting pelicles,
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Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The preparafon of these fnanclal statements in conformity with the sccounting and reporing standards, as applicable In
Pakistan requires menpgement to make judgaments, estimates and assumptions thot affect the application of the accounting
policies and the reporied amounts of assets, llablites, Incoma and expenses. The estimates and assoclated assumptons are
tased on historical experience and verious other feciors thel ere believed to be ressoneble under the dreumstences, the
reelita of which form the Easla of making the judgements about the carmying values of asssls and Rabilities that are nol readily

gppamnt from other sounces. Actual results may differ from thess estimetes.

The estimates underying the assumplions are reviewed on an ongoing basis, Revisions lo accounting estimates are
recognized in the parod In which the estimate Is revised I the revision affects only that pariod, or in the pedod of tha revision
and fulure perods if the revision affects both curment and fulure periods. Information about the judgements made by the
managemant in the application of sccounting poiicies, that have the most significant affact on the amounis recognized in thesa
financial staterments, assumptions and estimation uncertainties with significant risk of meteral adjustment to the carying
emouni of essate and Babiites in the next year are as follows:

St=fT retirament gratulty

Ceraln actuardal assumptons have been adopled as disciosed In Note 8.1 to the financial statements for delermination of

WWNM_MMIHMMIHMMWWM fhe current and remasssuremant gaing
and losses In those years.

Incoms tnx

In making the sslimates for Incoma tBx cumently payabls by tha Company, the managemant takes inlo accownl the current
Income tax law and the declsions of appellale suthorfies on certaln lssues In the past.

Unaful ives, patterne of sconomic benafite and impairmants

The astmate for revalued amount of freahold land s basad on valusSon porformad by extamal profeasional valuor and
recommendation of technical tzams of the Company. The sald recommendatons also Include estmates with reapect o
msidusl vaiuaes and dopraciable lvas. Further, tha Company reviews the vaius of the assats for possible impalmmant on an
asnnual basis. Estmates with respect o residual values and useful ives and pattem of fow of economic benefils are based on
tha analysis of the managamant of tha Company. Ary changa in the astimalos in future might affact tha camying amount of tha
respectivie lems of property, plant and equipment with & comesponding effect on the depreciation charge and mpaiment,

Invanicriaes
Met realizable valve of inventories s determined with reference to cumently prevalling sefing prices less estimeted expendiure

o maka ealas, inventony write-down is made based on the curment market conditions, historieal soperance and seliing goods
of =imitar nature. It could change significanty as a resull of changes in market conditions.

Allowance for expected credit losses

The allowance for expected credit losses asseasment requires & degree of estimation and |edgmenl. It Is based on the lifetime
axpecied cradit loss, basad on the Company's sxparnencs of actual credit loss in past years.

Revanus from contracis with cusiomsns Immohving sals of goods

¥YWhen recognizing revenus in relation o the sale of goods to customers, the key pedformance obfigation of the Company is
considersd (o be the point of delivery of the goods to the customer, as this is deemed o be the time that the customer obiaing
control of the promized goods and therelore the banefits of unimpeded access.
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d)

e)

Amendments to published spproved sccounting standerds that are effective In curment yoar and are relevant to the
Company

Foliowing smendmants to published approved sccounting standards are mandatory for the Company's scoounting pariods
beginning on or sfter 01 July 2020;

« [AS 1 (Amendments) Preseniation of Financlal Statements’ and 1AS 8 (Amendments) "Accounting Policles, Changes In
Accounting Estimates and Ermore’,

+ |ntermational Accounting Standards Board's mevised Concaptual Framework = March 2018

= IFRS 18 (Amendmants) ‘Leases’;

+ [nteresi Rate Banchmark Raform which amaended [FRS 8 "Finandal Instruments’, IAS 38 Financlal Instruments: Recogniiion
end Measurement' and IFRS 7 ‘Fingneial Ingtruments: Disclosuras’

Tha sbova-mantionad amendmants to approved accounting standards did not have any impact on tha amounts recognizad in
prior peniod and are nol expacted (o significantly affect the current o fulure perods,

Amandments to published spproved sccounting standsrds that are effective in curmant yaar but not relavant io the
Company

Thera are amendments io published spproved sccounting standards thal are mandaetory for sccounting perods beginning on
o after 01 July 2020 but are considerad not to be relevant or do not harve any significant impact on the Company’s financial
elgtenants and gre therelfors not detaliad in these financial stetemants.

Amendments to published approved sccounting standerds that are not yet effective but elevant to the Company

Following amendments to existng standards have been published and are mandatory for the Company's accounting periods
baginning on or aftar 01 July 2021 or laler perods:

Classtication of lmblities as curment or non-curreni (Amendments to |AS 1 ‘Preseration of Financial Stetements’) effective for
the annual pardod beginning on or after 01 January 2023, These smandments in the slanderds have been added lo further
clarify when a llablity Is classified as currenl The standard siso smends the aspect of classiication of Babliity as non-current
by requiring the essessmant of the ontity's rght et the end of the reporing perod 1o defer the settement of llabilty for ai lnasi
twelve months after the reporting perod, An entity shall apply those amendments retrospectively In sccordance with 1AS 8
‘Accounting Policies, Changes In Accounting Estimates and Emors”.

Onerous Coniracts - Cost of Fulfifiing 8 Contraci (Amendmeanis fo LAS 3T Provisions, Contingeni Liabilides and Contingent
Assnts') effectve for the ennual perod beginning on or after 01 January 2022 amends 1AS 1 Presentation of Financial
Stalaments’ by mainly adding paragraphs which clarifies whal comprisa the cost of fulfiling a contract. Cost of fulfling a
contract is relevant when determining whether a contract is onerous. An entity is required to apply the amendments o
contracts for which It has nol yei fulfilled & its obligations af the baginning of the annual reporting period In which It firsl applies
the amendments (the dale of initad application). Restatement of comparative information I8 nol required, instead the
amendments require en entity 1o recognins the cumulative effect of indtially applying the amendments as an adjusiment to tha
opening balance of retained eamings or other component of equity, as appropriale, af the date of inital application.

Proparty, Plant and Equipment: Procesda befors Intended Uss {Amandments to LAS 18 Proparty, Planl and Equipmant')
effective for the annual perod beginning on or after 01 January 2022, darifies that sales proceeds and cost of ltems produced
whila bringing an lem of properly, plant and equipmant o the lecation and condiion necessary for | to be capable of operating
in the manner intended by managemant e.g. when tesling etc.. ame recognizad In profil or losa In eccordance with applicable
Biandards. The entity measures the cosl of thoss fems apphing the measurement requiremants of 1AS 2 Inventodes’. The
standard glsc removes the requiremant of deducting the net sales proceeds from cost of testing. An entlty shall apply those
amendments retrospaciively, but only o kems of property, plani and equipment that are broughl to the localion and condition
necassary for tham fo be capable of operating in the manner intended by managament on or after the baginning of the sariast
perod presanted in the financial slalemanta in which the entity firat appliss the amandments. The aniity shall recognize the
cumulative effect of Inllally spphing the amendments as an adjustmant to the opaning batance of retained samings (or cther

componant of equily, 88 appropriale) at the baginning of that sardlsst perod presanied.
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Following annual improvemants to IFRS slandards 2018-2020 am effective for annusl reporting pariods baginning en or aftar
01 January 2022

[FRS @ ‘Financial instruments’ = The amendment darffies that an entity Includes only foes paid or received batwean the antity
(the bormower) and the lender, (ncluding feea paid or recelved by either the antity or the lender on the other's behalf, whan it

appiies the '10 per cent iest in paragreph B3.3.6 of IFRS 8 in assessing whether Io derecognize a financial liability.

IFRE 18 ‘Loases’ - The amendment partaly amonds lustretive Example 13 sccompanying IFRS 18 Leases’ by excluding the
Hustration of relmbursemant of leasshold improvemants by the lassor, Tha cblactve of the amandmant iz o meschvs any
potental confusion that méght arfee in leess incentives.

Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to LAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Stalements” and IFRS Practice Staterment
2 'Making Matariality Judgmant’) effactiva for annual pariods baginning on or afler 01 Janiary 2023, Thass amandmants am
ivtended to help preparers In deciding which ascounting policies to discless In their inancial Satements. Earier, IAS 1 stafos
that an antilty shall discloss Hs 'slgnificant secsunting policies’ In ik Rnancial slotamentz. Thass avendments shall assist tha
entiies o disclose their 'material accounting policies’ in their finandal statements,

COVID-18-Relatad Rent Concassiona (Amandmant to IFRS 16 "Leasss”) affaciva for snnual raporting perkods beginning cn or afler
01 April 2021. These amendments pemmit & leases to apply the praclical weediont mgarding COVID-19-relaled renl concesiions,
The sntity shell recognize the cumulative effect of initislly applying the amandments es an adjustment to the cpening balence of
reained samings (or other component of squity, as appropsiats) at the baginning of thal eariest pariod preseniad.

Changa in dafiniton of Accsurling Estimale (Amandmanta to LAS B 'Acsounting Policias, Changas in Actaunting Estimibed &
Errone) effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01 January 2023, Thig change replaced the definiion of Accounting
Estimarts with & new definition, inkendad to help entites o distinguish bebwesn sccounting policies and accounting estimates.

Interest Rate Benchmark Raform — Phase 2 which amended IFRS 8 'Financial Instruments’, 1AS 38 ‘Financial Instruments:
Recogniton and Measursment' and IFRS 7 Financial instruments: Disclosures’ is applicable for annpsl finendal perdods
baginning on or after 01 January 2021. The changes made relale to the modification of financial assels, financial Habilites and
lepse liabilies, specific hedpge sccounting requirgments, and disclosure requiremants applying IFRS 7 to pccompany the
amandments reganding modifications and hedge accounting.

The above amendmants and improvameants ane likely 1o hava no significant impact on the financial statemants,

Standards and amandmants 1o approved published standards that are not yet sffective and not considersd relevant to
tha Company

There are other standards snd amendments to published standards that are mandatory for accounting perods beginning on or
aftee 01 July 2021 but are considensd not 1o be relevant or do nol have any significant impact on the Company’s financial
staternents and are therefora not detelled In thase financial sistements.

Btaff retirement baneflt

The Company cperales an unfunded gratulty scheme for | permanent employees who heve compleled the minimum
qualifying pariod of servics us definad under tha schama. Tha Company's obiigation under this echama is delermined through
actuaral veluation camed under Projected Unit Credit Method, Latest eciuarisl veluation has been carmied on 30 June 2021,
Tha method involves moeking assumplions about descount reles, fulum ealary incraasss and mertslity retes. Due to thas long
torm nature of the benefit, such eatimales are subject io cersin uncertzinties. Significant assumptions used to camy out the
schuarial valugtion have bean discosad in Nots 8.1.4 o thess financial slatemenis

Rameasursmants changes which comprise actuadal gains and losses are recognized immediately in olther comprabensie
income.
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Functional and presentation currency slong with forelgn currency tranasctions and translstion

tems included in the financial statements of the Company and measured using the cumency of the primary economic
enviranmant in which tha Company oparstes (the functional curmsncy). Tha financial statermants ars prasaniag in Pak Rupsss,
which 8 the Company’s functional and preseniation cumency. All monetary assels and llabliies in foreign curmencies ame
translatnd inlo Pak Rupses af schangs rates pravaliing at tha epoarting dete. Transactions in forelgn currencias are transisted
into Pak Rupees at exchangs rales prevading et the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gaing and osses resulting
from the satiismant of such tansactions and from the transiaion af vear snd axchange rates of moneiary assals and iabllites
denominaled in forsign currencies ang chamged or credited (o statsment of profil or loss, Non-monetary assels and llabiiites
that are moasurd in tarms of historcal cost in & fornign curmancy are trmnslatod into Pok Rupsos at exchango mtes provoiling

gl the date of ransaction, Non-monetary assets and ablites denominated in forsign curmency that ane stated at Tair volue are
transiated into Pak Rupsas at axchangs ratns provalling st the dete when fair valuss are dotermined.

Texation
Current

Tha Company falls in the ambit of presumptive tax regime under section 168 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, Provision for
income lax B made in the tnancial stetements accordingly. However, proviaion for tax on other income is based on texmable
Incoma at the cument rates after considerdng the rebates and fax credifs avallable, if any. The charge for cument tax also
ingludes adjustments, whers considersd necessary, to provigion for tax made In previous years anaing from assessments
framed during the year for such years.

Deferred

Defarred tax is accounted for using tha liabiity mathod in respact of all emporary diffsrancas arsing from diffarences bt
tha carmying amounl of assels and Habiliies in the financisl sistemenis and the comesponding lex bases used In tha
compulation of the Exable profit. Defered tax labiilias are penarally recognicad for all toable mporary differencas and
deforrad tax assels to the axdant that it is probable thal laxable profits will be avallable ageinsl which the deductible lemporary
diffsrences, unused tax lossas and tax cradits can ba wlillzed,

Diefarred lax is calculaled af the ralee that are expectsd o apply to the period whan tha difemnces reverss bassd on lax rales
that have been enacled or subsianiively enacted by the reporting dele. Defermed lax is charged or credited in the statement of
profil or loss, excepl to the exant that it reletes o feme meognired in other compmhensive incoms or directly in equity. In this
case, the tax |s also recognized In other comprehenshve Income or directy In equity, respectively.

Property, plant, squipmani
Operating fixed sssots

Property, plant and squipment ars stated af cost less accumulated depreciation and any identified Impalment loss axoept
freshald lard which is stated el cost / revelued amount less any identified impairment loss, Capital work-in-progress s siated
ot cost losa any identified impalment oss. All expenditure connected with spocHic assets incumad during Instalation and
construction penod e camed under capital work-in-progress. These ame imnsferred to operating foed assels as and whan
thess are avalable for use. Cost of propery, plant and squipment signifies historcal cost. revalusd amount, bomowing cost
partaining lo erection / construction pariod s mefarmed in Note 2.9 and direclly sfiibulable cosl of bringing the assels o
working condifon.

Increases in the caming emounts ansing on evaluation of freshold land are mcognized in other comprehanaive incoma and
accumuiated In revaluation surplus In sharsholders' aquity. To e sxdent thal Increass reverses a decrsass pravioushy
recognized n the stelemeant of profit or loss, the Increass s firs! mcogniced in the statement of profit or lose. Decreases thal
revarse pravious Increases of the samé asset ara first recognized In other comprehanshe Incoma lo the axanl of the
remaining surplus alidbuteble o the easel; all other decreases are chamged 1o the stetement of profit or loas.

Valuations are performed freguently enough o ensuns thal the fair value of & revalued sssel Joes nol differ matedally from ite
carming amount.

Subsequent cosls are inciuded in the asssls camying amouni of recognized as & separale assel. as appropriste, anly whon i
s probable thal fulurd dconomic benefils associated with tha Ram will Aow lo the Company and the cost of the iem can ba
measured reliably. Maintenancs and normal repairs are charged to the stalemant of profit or loss during the pedod they ora
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Depreciation

Depraciation on propedy. planl and equipment is chamed lo the stelement of profit or losa applying the reducing balance
mathad af the rates given in Note 14.1 1o wrils off the cost ower their sxpactad useful e The Company changas depraciation
on addiions from the date when the azset is available for use and on delelions up o the date when assel s de-recognized.
The residual values and vsaful lives ane reviewad by the managemant, at aach financial year end and adjustad i impact on
depreciation ks significanl.

Do-racognition

An tem of propery. plant and aquipmant is de-recognized upon disposal or whan no fubes sconomic benafits am expaciod
frrn Ba Usa of disposal. Any galn of loss arlslng on de-recognition of the assat is included in the stalemant of prot of loss In

tha yoar the assel is de-recognized.
Leases
Right-of-use sssets

A right=of-use asset is recognized at the commencemant date of a leass. The right-of-use asset 8 measured al cost, which
comprises the initkal amownl of the leass llabdlity, adjusted for, as appilcable, any lease payments made at or before the
commanceman] date nat of any lease incentves recatved, any Initial direct costs Incurmed, and, except whens included in the
coat of Inventores, an esiimate of costs expecied to be Incurred for dismanling and removing the underdying assel, and
restoring the sile or assel

Right-ol-use assets am depreciated on a straight-line basle over the unoxpired period of the lease or the estimated useful FHa
of the assel, whichever is shorfer, Whene the Comparny expects to obtain ownership of the leased assel ot the end of the leass
tarm, the depreciation s chamged ovar its estimated useful Be. Right-of use essets sre sublect to mpalment or adjusied for
any re-measurement of lease labilites,

The Company has eiected nol to meognize a right-of-use esset and comesponding loase aebifty for short-erm leeges with
tarma of 12 monthe or less and lsases of low-valus assefs. Leass payments on these sssets are charged to Incoma as

ingumed,

Lsass bt

A leazs liablity Is recognilzed al the commancamant date of & lsese. The leass bty la inftally recognized at the presant
valus of the lsass paymants o be made dver the barm of th leass, discounisd using the intemst rale implicd in the laass or, if
that rate cannot be readily determined, the Compary’s incremenial borrowing rote. Leass payments comprise of fond
payenls [ass any lease neantives recelvable, varfable laase payrnents that depand on an index or & rals, amounlts sxpecied
o ba paid undar roakdual value guaranteos, exerciea price of a purchasa option when the exercess of the option B mascnably
codain to occur, and any anticipated ternination pedaltes. The vatable lease payments thal do nol depend o dn indec o 8
rala ara expangad in the pedod in which thay are incurmad.

Lass liabiites are measured at amortiosd cost using the effective interest mathod, The camying amounts are re-measursd
thare (& a changs in tha follawing: future leass poymonts anaing from & changa in an indax or a rate usad; residual guarantos;
lsase terrn; certainty of @ purchase option and termination penalties, When a lsase labilty is re-measured, an adjustment is
mada 1o the cormeaponding Aght-of-use assat, or to statement of profit or loas if the camying amount of the Aght-of-uss assst s
Tl by writhin dowr.

[Jareh Contracts

Under the [jarah contracts. the Company cbialns vaufruct of an esaet for an agreed periad and consideration. The Company
acesunts for s llarah contradls in accordancs with the requiremants of IFAS 2 Taral', Accordingly, the Company as a
Mustafir (lesaar) in the ljarah contract recognizes the Ujah (lease) paymants as an expansa in the statement of profit or loss
on stralght ine leass over the arah term.
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Irrveniorios

imventories, sccapt for stock n tmneit and waste slock [ mgs, em staled &l lower of coul and net realizable value. Cost =
determined as foliows;

Stores, spare parts and loose tools

Ugabie siores, spare parts and [oose lools are valued principally 8t moving everage cost, while tems considersd obaolete ane
carmad at nil value, In transil stones, spare paris and looses thols ane valved at cost comprising molca value plus other charges
paid themaan.

Stock in trade

Cost of raw materials, work-in-process and finfshed goods s determined as follows.

(i} Forraw meefals = Annual average basis,
M} Forwork-in-process - Average manifacluning cost including a portion
and finished goods of production overheads.

Kalarials in transit are valued at cogt compriaing invoice value plus other chamges peid thareon. Wasta stock [ mgs gre valued
at net realizable vaiue,

Mel realzable value signifies the estimated seling price In the ondinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the esiimeisd costs necassary io make a aals.

Borrawlng cost

interest, mark-up and other chamges on long ferm financing ere capislized up to the dete of commissioning of reapective
qualifying assets acquired out of the proceeds of such long term financing. All other interests, mark-up and other charges ans
recognized in stalement of profil or logs.

Provizions

Provisionz are recognired when the Company has a legal or construciive obligation as a resull of past evanis and it fa
probable that an outfiow of resources embodying econgmic benafits will be reguired to setfie the obligation end @ rolisbie
astimate of the obligation can ba mada.

Impalrmant of non-financial aasals

Tha carmying amounts of the Company's non-financial assats ara reviewed at each reporing dale to determine whethar thers fs
arry indication of impdinmenl. IF such indidation axists, the assel's recoverable amaunt, Balng higher of valus in uss and falr
value less cost 1o sell, iz estimaled, An impsirment loss is recognized whenever, the camying amount of an assal exceads ite
recoverable amount. Impairment loss is charged to the statement of profil or loss. Reversal of the impaiment Iosses an
restricied o the exient that the assels camying amounl doss nol excesd the camying amounl thel would heve besn
deiarminad, nel of dapreciation, #f impairment lozs had not been recognized. Revarsal of impairment loss i aiso recognitzad in
the staterment of profit or loss.



Wt T Ml Ll

112

213

214

Rovenue from contracis with customern

Revenus mecagnition
Saila of goods

Revanue from the sabe of goods i recognized at tha polnt in Gme when the customer cbtains contmol of the goods, which ls
generally at the time of delivery. Relaled Govemment grant ls recognlzed when there Is reasonable sssurance thal Company
will comply with the condiions attached to it and grant will ba received.

Rendering of sarvices

Revanue from & conirect to provide sanvices B recognized over tma as the services am rendemed besad on aither a fixad price
of an hourly rate.

Intarast

interest income is recognized as infemest acorues using the sifective interest method. This is 8 methed of calculating the
amorizad cos! of a inancial asset and aliocating the Interes! Incomea over the relevant pariod using the effective intorest rate,
which is the raie thet exactly discounts estimated futume cash receipis through the expectad fife of the finencisl seset to the naet
camying amount of the Enancial sseel.

Dividand
Dividend on invesiments s recognized when dght bo receive the dividend is astablished.

Crthar ravarie

Orther revenue ks recognizad when it is received or when the right 1o recerve payment is established.

Coniract sasets

Contract assats arss whan the Company parforms s parformance obligations by transfarring goods to a customer befors the
cusiomer pavs e consideration or bafore payment i dua. Contrecl essels ore troatsd as financlal esaets for impairment
pUrpOses.

Right of return assets

Right of retum asssts reprasents tha righl (o recover immeniony sold fo cusiomers and is based on an estimate of customens
who may axercise their rght lo relum the goods and claim a refund. Such rghts are measured al the value at which the
imantory was previously camiad prior o sals, lass axpacled mcovery costs and any impairmant.

Contract Habilities
Contract llabiity s the obiigation of the Company io transfer goods o a customer for which the Company has recehned
consderation from ha customer. If @ clslomer pays congideralion bafore the Company transfarm goods, B contract labiity s

recognized when the payment |8 made. Contract labllites are recognized as revenus whaen the Company parforma its
performanda obligationa undar the contract.

Bhare capltal
Ordinary and preferance shanes are classified as equity.
Financisl instrumants

Recognition of fingncial inytruments

The Compamy Inilally recognizes financlal asseta on the date when they are orginated. Finandal |labiiies ane inklally
recognized on the irede data when the antity becomes a perty to the conlrectual provisions of the instrument.
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i} Classiflcation and measurement of financlal Instrumoents

Investments and other financial seeets
a) Classificatlon
The Company classihes i finencal assels in the following measurement calegoriss:

» those to be messured subsequently at the fair velue through profit or loss; and
« hoaa b ba massured at Amonzad soet

The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financlal assets and the contraciual terms of
tha cash flows,

For aasets measured al fair value, gain and losses are recognized in stalament of profit or loss.

Far investments in debt instruments, this will dopend on the business modal in which the imestment ia held, The Company
reclabafias dabt inslrumants whan and only whan ils businass modal for managing thoss assals changes,

b) Moasurement

At Initial racognition, the Company measums a financial ssset at ita falr value, in the cose of a financial assal ot it fair valus
plut transaction plus, in the case of 4 financial assat not &t fair value through profit or loss, fransaction cost that any dinsctly
attributabls to the scquisition of the fnancial asast. Tronsaction costs of financial pssats carmad at foir valua through profit or
loss ars sepanssd n profit or oss,

Financial asssts with ambaddad dardvalives ard consideied in their enliraty when datermining whethar their cash flows anas
salely payment of princlpal and intevest.

Dabt instrurmants

SUbsaquent measurement of debl Inabruments depends on the Company's business madel for managing the asset and the
cash fiow charecteristics of the assat.

Amortlzoed cost

Finencial ezsate thet are held for collection of confreciual cagh fiows whoere those cash flows reprasant solely payments of
principal and Interest are measured at amoriizad cost. Interest Income from these financial sssets is Included In other Income
uging the eflactive inlerest rete method. Any gain or loes arsing on do-recognition i recognized direcly in profit or loss and
presented in other Income / (other expenses) together with forelgn exchange gaine and losses.

Equity Instruments

Tha Company subsaquantly maasures all equity instrumants al fair velue for financial instruments quoled In an actve market,
the fair value comesponds io m market price.

Al talr value through profit or loss

Changes In the fsir vaius of squity Inetruments ai fair value through profit o loss sre recognized In other Incoma / (other
DXDENEGR].

Dividenda from such investments continue fo be recognized in profit or loss a9 other income when the Compamny's right to
rACHTE PAYMARES (& satablished,
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Financial llabliftes
Classfficafion and measuremant

Finencial liabilities are dassified at amotized cosl. These are aslso subsaquenty measured el amortired cost using the
effective [ntersst method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in statement of profit or
loss. Any gain or loss on de-recognition is also included in profit or loss,

Impairmant of financlial assets

The Company recognizes losa allowances for ECLs on financlal assats measured at amordized cost. The Company measures
loss allowsnces st an amount equal lo lifetime ECLs, axcept for the following, which are measured af 12-month ECLs:

bank balances and debl securities for which credit ek (L. the ek of dofaull occurring over the mpected life of the financsal
instrament) has not Increas=d significantly since infilal recognition.

1Z2-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from defeull events that are possible within the 12 montha efter the
rapoding date (or & shortar pariod ([ the expactad [ of tha instrument iz leas than 12 months).

Whean determining whather the credit rsk of a financial assel has increased significantly sinca intial mecognifion and when
estimating ECLs. the Company conskders reasonabia and supportable irformation that 1 relevant and avallabie without undue
cost of effort. This includes both quaniitative end queliiative information and analysis, based on the Company's historical
axperience and informed credit assessment and INcluding Torwand-ooking Informatian.

Tha Company assumes thal the credi resk on a Fnancial esset hes Increased significantly if it s mome than past dus for a
reasonabls pariod of time. Lifetime ECLs ara the ECLs that resull from all possible default events over the expectad (B of a
financial insirumani, 12-month ECLs are the porion of ECLs that result from defeull events that are possible within the 12
months after the reporting date (or & shorer perdod If the sxpecied He of the Instrument is less than 12 montha).

The gross camying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Company has no reasonable expeciations of recovering
of a financial assel in |is entirely or & portion thereol. The Company individually makes sn assessmant with respect fo the
timing and amount of write-off based on whether there is & reasonable expectation of recovery. The Company expects no
significant racovery from the amount writhan off, Howewer, financial sssals that are written off could =8l ba subjecl o
enforcement activities in order to comply with the Company's procedures for recovery of amounis due.

Al each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assels are cedii-impalred. A financlal asse! Is ‘credi-
impaired” when one or more eventa that have 8 defrimental Impact on the estimated future cash flows of the NMnanclal assat
have occurmad,

Evidenca that a financlal aseet it credi-impained inciudes the following ahearvahle data

- significant financial difficulty of the dettor,
- @ breach of contraet such ag & dalfaul:

- the estructuring of a lcan or advancs by tha Company on lsrma that the Company would not considar otharwise; or
= It s probable that the dablor will aniar bankruptcy o other financs recrganizaton,

De-recogniton
Finenclel assety

Tha Company de-recognizes § financial asast when the confractupl rights 1o tha cash flows from thao nesol sapie, or R
iransfers the rights to receive the contractual cash fiows In a transaction In which substantally all of the risks and rewards of
ownarship of tha financial asesl are rensforred, or il naither Transfers nor retaing substantslly all of the fgks and rewards of
ownarship and doos not retaln control over the transfermed asset. Any irterest in such de-recognizad financial assets that is
craptad or retained by the Company i3 moognizad as o soporata asesl or lob| ity

&
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Financlal llabilides

The Company de-recognizes a financhal Fability (or a part of financial labiity) from s staterment of financial position when the
obligation spacified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or axpired,

Cffsatting of finencial instrumenta

Financial assats and finencial liabilites are set off and the net amount i@ eportad in the financial slatomanta when them is 8
lagal anfarcaabla right o 88l off and the Company inténds aithar 1o satda on & nat baais of 1o réalizs the aspals and 1o satlis
the liabilitios simultaneousty.

Trade snd other recalvables

Trade recoivabies ame infially mcognized at fair value and subsequently measured et amorized cost using the effective
intanast mathod, ses any allowancs for sepactad cradil loasad.

Tha Company hes appled the simpliied epproach to measurs expactnd credit loases, which uses & Melime sxpacisd lpes
allowance, Actual credt loss sxpenience over past yoars |s used io base the calculation of cpociad credit ioss,

Cihar receivables ans recognized at amortized cost, less any allowancs for expecied credit kossas.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognized initially at fair value and sre subsegquently stated at amoriized cost Any difference betwean the

procesds and the redemption value is recognized in the simtement of profit or loss over the period of the bomowings using the
effective interest mathod.

Trade srd other payables

Liabilithes for trade and other amounts payable are initlally recognizad at falr value, which is nommally the transaclion cost
Cash and cash sgquivalants

Cash and cash aquivalants comprise caeh in hand, ceeh g banks on cument, saving and deposit accounts and other ghod
tarm highly liquid instruments thal are readity convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject lo Insignificant risk
of cheinges in valuas

Dividend and cther appropristions

Dividend disiribubon to tha Company's sharsholders is recognizad in the parod in which i is daclared and other appropriations
am recognized in the parod in which these are approved by the board of dineciomn.

Beagmant reporting

Sagment reporting is beased on the openating (businesa) ssgments of tve Company. An operaling segmenl 8 a componeni of
the Company thal engages in business activities from which it may eam revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and
sxpanses that relate o the transactions with any of the Company’s other componants. Operating ssgments are mporsd in a
meanner consiaterd with the intermal reporting siruchure. Management monfiors the operaiing results of its segments separatety
for the purpase of making decisiona reganding resaurcs sliscalion and performancs assessment

Segment results that are reported to management Include Rams directly alidbutable to a segment as well as those thal can be
gliocatod on B ressonable basks. Those income, axponses, sesels, lisbilities and other balances which cannot be aliocated o

2 parficular sagment on a easonable basis are reporied as unallocated.

@
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Tha Company has three reportable opadating segmants: I) Spinning (Producing diferent qualites of yam), ) Kniting
{Producing knitted fabric from yam), i) Processing end Garmants {Procassing of greige fabric for production of dyed and whils
fabric and manutacturing of varety of gamments from processed fabric).

Trangaclions among the operating segments are mecorded al arm's length prices uaing admissibla valuation methods. Intar
segmant salss and purchasas are allminatad frarm tha total.

Z21 Eamings per share

The Compamy presents basic and diluted Eamings per Share (EPS). Basic EFS is calculated by dividing profil attributable (o
shamshol/dors of the Company by the waighted sverags number of ordinary shars outstanding during tha year. Diluted EPS =
dedarmined by adjusting profit atiribulable (o sharehoiders and the weightad average number of crdinary shares cutstanding
with tho effocts of all dilutve potential ordinary shars.

232 Continganl assels

Contingent asseis am disclosed when the Company has a possible asset thel arses from pasl events and whose exislance
will only be confinmed by the occumancs of non=occLAmance of one of more uncartain fulure events not wholly within the control
of the Company. Contingent assels are not recognized unill their realizaion becomeas cerdain.

223 Contingant lablitties

Contingent llabillty 1s disclosed when the Company has a possible obligation &3 a resull of past events whose exstence will
only ba confirmed Whmmmmﬂmwmmnﬁmﬂmmﬂdwﬂhhhmﬁdd
tha Company. Cantingsnt lablites ara not racognized, only discioasd, uniass the passibilty of & future outow of resolrcas (&
considersd rarmole. In the evant that the outflow of resources associated with & contingant labllity s assessed as probabla,
and If the size of the outfiow can be rellably esimated, 8 provision ls recognized In the finencial statements,

224 Governmant grants

The banefit of lower interast mata than market rale on bomowings obtained under Stale Bank of Pakistan (SBP) refinanca
schema for payment of salares and wages to tha amployess and workers of tha Company, |s sccounted for as govemmant
grant which is the difference between loan received and the fair value of the loan. The differendal amount is recognized and
prasanted &= dalamad government grant.

In subssquant pariods, the grant shall ba amortized over the perad of loan and amonization shadl be recognizad in the profit or
loss.

3. ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP SHARE CAPITAL

2021 2020 2021 2020
(NUMBER OF SHARES) (RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
67 500 000 67 500 000 Ovrdinary shams of Rupass 10 aach fully paid in cash BT5,000 875,000
31 166 6568 31 166 668 Cumulative preference shams (nen-voling) of Rupses

10 aach fully pakd in cash (Mote 3.1) 311,888 211,268
08 656 BEE 08 68 888 —00,088 086 668

31 The Company lsaued cumidative preferance shares as &l 30 June 2005, which are lisled on Pakistan Slock Exchange
Limited, to finance the working capital requirements and foeed capital expenditure.

&



Terma of redemption
a Conversion opticn

Preference sharsholders have the option to senve a nolics to the Company to convert one third of the preference shares along
with accumulated dividend inte ordinary shares of the Company afler the sxpiry of four years from the dale of issuance in any
conversion year at a discount of 16 percent ko iImmediately preceding 30 calendar days’ everags market value, Upon recsiving
tha convarsion nobica, the Company will have the option lo mpay the preference shares elong with the accumuleted dividend
for which comverslon notice has been Bsued within one month of recehving thoreol or lssue ordinary sharss o preference
sharshaolders.

b) Call option

The Company has the oplion o redeem the prefersnce shares after four years of the lssuance in part in multipies of 10
parcant upio 100 percent fram the preference shamsholders. The call price would be Rupees 10 par share plus the entire
sccumuilaied preference share dhvidend, If any.

&) Rate of dividend

The praference diidend is payable at the everage rate of six months KIBOR phus 2 parcent per annum on cumulathe basis,
According to the terma of ssuance, dividend o ordinary sharsholders could onty be padd after the payment of preference
dividend to prafemsnce sharsholders.

d) Binking fund ressrve

The Company hes created a sinking fund reserve (capital redempiion esarve fund) from the profils of the Company o make
payménts againat any call option. The Company has buill-up this sinking fund redane ko enasure that at the end of the fourth
yoar from the lssuance date, the resarve s equal o one third of the total amount of preference shares. This MoV Sccou
will subsequenty ba replenished lo ansurs thal one third of the sulslanding prelérence aharea amoun! b avedlable in the
resene account.

3.2 17 396 833 ordinany shares (2020: 17 396 833) of the Company are held by Shanghel Chellenge Tedle Company Limited - an
nEaocighe.

i gl
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
4., CAPFITAL REBERVES
Share pramium (Note 4.1) 1,375,000 1,375,000
Capital redemplion ressrve fund (Note 4.2) 128,333 128333
Capital confribution (Note 4.3) 1,500,000 -
Surplus on revaluation of freehokd land (Mo 4 4) # 447 552 2447552
2450885 ___S850880

4.1 This reserve can be utitoed by the Company cnly for tha purposes spacifled in seclion 81 of the Companies Act, 2017,

#4.2 The Company has created thia reserve from ia profits o make payments against any call option of preferance shares.

&
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4.3

A4

Gapital contribution

Thess reprasent unsecured Interas! free loans from director / shameholders of the Company as required by the banks in thair
sanction advioss. Thase ane rpayabis on Company's discration. Thase loans an eated as capital contribution in accordancs
with the guldslines provided by The Instiiuls of Cherlared Accountanis of Paldstan (ICAP) vide Technical Relaass-32.

Surplus on revaluation of freshold land

Cpaning balance
Add: Surplus on revaluation of fresnold kand

REVEMUE RESERVES

Unappropriated profi

LONG TERM FINANCING

From banking companias - sacurnd

Long term loans (Mole 8.1)
Sukuk | Dimiinkshing musharika (Note 8.2)

Less: Current porion shown under current labilites (Nole 12)

2021 2020
{RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

2 447 552 B0, 234
1,547,318

2,447 552 2447 552

714,500 714,500
2,763,230 3,158,114
ﬁ?ﬂﬂ 2872614

4,712,033 4,844 061
2841578 2511458

T.583.812 7755518

2,548,001 S00,992
5,007,811 7,254 578
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201 2020
(RUPEES IM THOUSAMD)
LEASE LIABILITIES
Total leases labfites (Mole 7.1.1 and Mots 7.1.2) 228,085 340 578
Lesi: Curm! portion shown under curmant labittos (Nete 12) {131.288) {128,654)
84,777 210,712
Reconciilation of leave Rabilites
Cipening balenoce 340,678 -
At
Adfustmant on adaption of IFRS 18 an 01 July 218 - 242,821
Additiona during tho year 210,522 238 BE0
Interes! acorued on leese Eabillies (Mol 31) 18 848 24 toR
563,744 506,173
Lass:
Termination of sasa during tha year 180 BTE .
Payments during the year 152 BO3 165,603
343870 185,803
Closing balance 208 DBE 340,876
Le=s: Curment portion shown undsr current [abiites. (Nole 12) (131,288) {129, 564)
Non-curnt porion 84777 210012

T.1:1 The value of mirimum esss paymants of lessa amounting o Rupses 20,668 million (2020 Rupsess 22.2686 milllon) hoa baen discouniad

using impicit interest rate of 8.74% to 14.99% (2020: 12.25% i 15.85%) per annum. Balance rentals are payabls in monthly irstalimants,
Taxes, repaira and Irmumnce costs are to ba bome by the Company. In case of termination of the agreament, e Comparny shall pay endire
amount of rentals for unexpired pedod of lease egresment. Laass agreasment is renewable ai the oplion of the lessor on such temms as may
ba agread upsn. LiabiNlas are socumd agalnst deposiin of Rupsas 8.778 milllon (2020; Rupass 8.778 millon) includad In kang ianm sacumty
deposils,

T2 The vaus of mnimum lbasa paymants of insss amounting to Rupsas 206,388 milllon (2020 Rupesss 3168.280 milion) haa been discountad

T2

using incromantal borowing rate of B.30% and D.78% (202 B 30%) por annum. Balanco rontalz e paysble in monthly instalimants.
Repein and Insuance costs are o be bome by the Company. In case of lermination of the agreement, threa months notice Is 1o be given.
Loase agreament i renewable &t the mutual consent of both parties on such torms o3 may be agreed upon. Lisbiides are securod againsd
deposits of Rupsss 17.033 million (2020; Rupsss 10.978 milksn) includsd in kong benm sacurity dapoais

Mirimum lease paymonts and Ul prosit Voloos an regroupad oe undaen

201 2020
Mol later than | Labar than one | Mol lgter than | Laber than one
one year | year but noft laler O yRar yoar but nol

han five years later than fiva
oy
—JRUPEES IN THOUSAND)
Louse payments 143 442 100,068 151,140 237,571
Lesa: Finance coat {12,154) (5,258) (21,276} {26,559)
Presart valus of lsase payments 131,268 #4777 128,864 210,712 _
20z 2030
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
DEFFERED LIABILITIES
SualT retlrarmant gralully (Mats B.1) 1,078,818 864,354
Daferred income - government grant (Mots 8.2) G4 .
Giaa Infrestructure Devalepmant Caas (GIDC) (Mota 8.3) 2,608 -

~ 1087 E2  GBA3BA
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813

14

BTAFF RETIREMENT GRATUITY

Lpening

Add:

Prowision fior they year (hobe 8.1.1)

Rameamsurmenia recognlred In cthar comprahansive Income (Mole 8.1.2)

Claalng balmance

Loas:
Payments made during the year
Increasa In current labliity - ned

Frovislon for the year

Currand service coal
Intaraat cont

Remaniuramants moognizsd in othar comprahsnaive [neomes

Actuarial (gain) / loss from changes in financial assumpbions
Exparionos adjusiments

Raconcillation of presant valus of defined benefi obligation as =t 30 Juns ls glven balow:

Prasant vilus of dofinad baneft abilgation as ot 01 July

Crrond senvics comd

Interest cosd

Bongiis paid during the yeor

incroase In curmend Rabity - net

Ramaasimrarmants:
Actumial (pain) / logs from changes in financlal sssumplions
Exparisnis s SBIment

Presont value of defined benefit obiigation as sl 30 June

Principal sctusrial assumptions used

Ditscount raks for interest cost in profit ar loss chargs (per @nnuem)
Disccunt rats for year and obigation {per annum)

Expacted rsle of increass in saary (por annum)

Avaragh duration of the Banafit {years)

Mostality ratms

W' holrarwaal raxte
FAotramant assumpton

2021 2020
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

954,364 770,256
338,243 312,384
(2.263) {20.623)
1.300,334 1082007
(218,742} (77,377)
{1,673)
(Z21,415) (57,663)
1,078,919 964,354
255,683 209,581
72,560 102,803

—t 312304

3.231) 10,8
968 (31,814)
—2283), __[20833)
B4 354 770258
265,863 209,581
72,560 102,803
(218,742} (rr.am
(1,673) {20, 6
(3.231) 10,991
14
(2.283) {20.623)
1,075,919 964,354
2021 2020
&.50% 14.25%
10.00% B.50%
5.00% T.50%

] .
SLIG2009-05  SLIC 2001-08
sod back 1 year =8l back 7 year

A based Age based
Age B0 Age B0
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Banalthity analysis for sctusrial sssumptions:
The saanftivity of tho deflned bl obilgaton ss ol raporting date i chemges iy the weighted prnclpal sssumptics, B2

3 020
Disoount rale 1.00% 1.00%
increass in ssaurmnption (Rupees in heusand) (T T .BET) ["0,395)
Dscraass in assumption [Rupsss in thotsand) BD,B44 B1,884
Future salary increases 1 00% 1.00%
inornase in essumpton (Rupees in thousand) BB 838 78,903
Decreass in sssurmplion (Rupees in thousand) {76,203) (69,035)
Expecied maiurity prodils
Foliowings an ths axpacied distibution and Sming of benaft paymonts ot yser snd:
Description biiryl 00

(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

20 - 183,883
20 181,081 161,917
2023 205,181 163.319
2024 1o 2028 833,025 68,658
2023 mnd oravarts 12 558,551 7 523,408

Tha senaitivity snalysis is basad on a change in an assumption while halding all other assumptons constant In practics, thiz is unikely o
occur, ard changes in soma of the assumplions may bs comalaled. When calculating the sanaltivity of ha defined benslit pian o aignificant
eciuarial sssumplions, the same method (present value of the defined beneift plan calculated with the projected und credit method at the end
of the reporing perod) has baan appled &S whan calcihsling the gratuly Bablilty ressghized within the stalament of Inancial posifien.

The methods and types of assumplions used in preparing the seneifvity analysis did nol change companed o the previous yoar cxcepl for
cartaln changes &8 given in Note 8.1.4

The estimeled expenses io be changed to profi and loss acoournt for the year ending on 30 June 2022 ks Rupees 407 812 million.

Risks esaocisted with the scheme

Final salary s {linked to Inflatlon ruk)

The risk that the final salary of e tma of cessation of senice i+ greater than what we sssumed. Since tha banefit is calculpied on the final
nalnry (which wil ciossly refect infistion and other macroesonomic facion ), the baneft amount incresses as salary incrosses
Darnograghe riak

- MortaBty rak - The risk ihal the achml monalily expedence i different than the sssumed moraiity. This effec] & mome proncunced In
achamas whamn the aga and ssnvica distribution ls o the higher aida.

= Withdrowal rak - The rsk of actual withdrewals experence i different from assumed withdrewal pobebliity. The signiicance of the
witthel el ik varias with (ha age, sarvicos ahd the entillad banalis of tha bbnallchary.
i b2l

(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
Deferred Ingome - Govermmant grant

Riscognized during the year B, 94T .

Amoriized during the yesr (Nobe 30) [46,258) .

43,688 -

s Crurmpnl, povtion ghosm under corment liabd ties (Mote 12) 37,2688 -
J —_
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The Sisin Bank of Pakizisn (SBP), through Rs Croular Mo, 06 of 2020 datad 10 Apdl 2028 has infroduced a iempomary Refinance Schema
for Payment of YWeges and Salanes 1o the Workers and Empicyses of Business Concama (the Roinance Schome). The Refinances Scheme
ie furded by SBP. Borowers can oblasin loans fom the Banks and e their cash fow constraints to swoid lyoffs. Ore of the key festums of
the Refinance Schame is thal bormowers can oblain loen af medk-up miss bal am below nomal lending meies. As per Infemational
Ascouniing Standard (IAS) 20 'Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosurs of Govemment Assistance’ the benel of & Govemrmeni
loan at o badow-markst rate of inlores! |8 froated a8 & Govemmant Gant. The Company has obininad this loan as diasicssd In Mol 6.1.1 to
the firancial statements. In agcordance with IFRS 9 "Financial Ingtruments’, lgan oblained under the Refinence Scheme was iniSisily
mecogniraed at [t 8 vaoe which |8 e present value of ban proceeds moalved, discourded wing prevaling maroed rales of inemsl for a
sirnilar Insbrument. Hence, the barell of the below—rmartod rale of inlerest has been mosmed a5 the difference: betwaen Be nillel canying
valus of the lsan determingd In sccordance with IFRS 9 and e procoeds received. This baneil s ecosuntsd for and prosented &s cofermed
grant In accordance with LAS 20, The grant is being amortized in the statement of profit or loss, In fine with the recognition of inferest expense
the gran |s compensating.

FaiFgl 20
(RUPEES N THOUBAND)
Gaa [nfrastructure Development Geas (GIDG) payable

Balance Bt the beginning of th vear 31,618 .86

Lass: Galn on ramassuraensent of GIDC [Nols 30) {2,740) -

Ak Limwinding of discount on GI0G payable (Nobe 31) 1,758 =
30634 41,6818

Lass: Prymanta mads during the poar 8313 -
211 1,818
Laas: Gument porBion shown under cument Babilities (Note 12) 18,715 I1.616

—08 .

Thia reprasenis Ges Infrestructhe Developmen! Cass (GIDC) which wes lovad though GIDC Adl, 2015, Durdng the year, Suprama Court of
Paidztan vide judgement dated 13 Augusl 2020 has uphedd the GIDG Act, 2015 o be constitulional and Inlra vires. Now the Company 2 ko
oy tha balanca amaunt of GIDS In 24 equel manthly instalments. This llabiifty hee bean recognized e falr valua using dincount e of
0.23% per annum and the diffemence batwsen the fair value and the fotsl emount of fabiity = recognized in stetemaent of profit or lees as
giter income. Subsaguent to Inltlal recognition, the: affect of urmwinding of iablity la recognized In sintmant of profit or loss as finence cosl.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Craditors 3,204 387 1,067,363
Contract labiilhos - uneecisned 130,848 248,670
Acorued inbilites 1476574 1,173,668
Incame x deducied &l scuwros 18,395 2.3
Eglos tax deducted al source 105,851 77,082
Workers' weltars fund (Note 29) 71,189 -
—i382 203
ACCRUED MARK-LIP
Lirig rn fnancing 78,559 226,235
Short o bompwings 53,565 168,548
160, 164 354 754



1.

12.

13

14

SHORT TERM BORROWINGS - SECURED

Tred represant e Tnances cliaived fm DEnking CoOMpIies which are socured by wary of irsl joinl pan passy charpe over Curment assets
of the Company, pledge and personal guaraniee of direciors. Mark-up & paid ol the nate of 2 50% per annum to 13 85% per annum {2020
2.75% par annum to 18.42% por onnuam). The sanctionsd credil facltes aro Rupess 17,075 millon (2020 Rupsss 17,805 millon).

F-rq 200
{RUPEES IN THOUBAND)
CURRENT PORTION OF MON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Leng twrm financing (Mote &) 2.5405,001 500,933
Lease labies (Note 7) 131,288 129,884
Defarmed Incoms - Gaovemmeant grant (Mole 8.2) 308 -
Deferred Linbdiy of GIDG (Note 8.3) 18,716 21618
R s———a L

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
Contingancies

Guararteas of Rupess 244 885 millon (2030: Rupees 258 565 milion) are given by the banis of the Company to Sul Northem Gas Pipalines
Limited {SHGPL) againsl gas connections and Tolal Perco Paldstan Limied against fuel cards.

On 12 August 2020, e Suprema Cour of Pakistan uphaid the Gas Infrestnecture Dewmiopment Coens (GIDC) Act, 3015 to be constitutional
and intra vires. In connaction with this decieion, the Compeny fled 8 wril pefition in Luhom High Court, Lehore on 14 Beplember 2000
egainst the chirge of GIBC st the mbs of captive power consumaes Inetead of iIndustral conaumer. Lehore High Court, Lahom suspendad the
payment of Rupses 23,625 milion (2020: Rupees 20,200 milion) relaled to this difference, subject o fumishing of post deled cheques which
o Baing submithed by the Company. Kaaping in viaw tha oplnlon of the legal counss! of tha Company, B mletad proviaon ia not mess in
these financial statements s there sre strong grownds of favoyrable oulcome of the pefition.

Comraltraants

Contracis fior capital sspenditune are amounting to Rupses 27 452 milllon (2020 Rupess 167.148 millon) and other than cepilal sxpenditum
am of Rupsas 2,020,522 milfllon (2020; Rupeas 628882 milllon).

ljarah commtmants - Company ba nasse

Tha Company obisined vehiclea under ljarah sgpmamend. The leese lama am three io flve years, The Company has given undartaidng o
purchass the lessed vehides on agreed purchase prce sl mahuity.

Tha fulure aggregate minimum lsase payments under [jareh ame as folows:

Not later than one year 44,784 38,337
Later than one yoar and not ialer han five years 71857 84,578
1875 122 608

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Cporating fluad assets (Note 14.1) 13,231,142 13181273
Capial werk-in-progroas (Nobe 14.2) 458 263 450,758
3000400 13612051
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1412 Depeecintion ehings fr th phar his b Mlocaing o6 follows:

£l ]
{RUPEES IN THORSAND)
Cosl of pales (g 26) Lirdo &0, 200
Ciiriberfion cost (Moks 2T} ] 535
AcsnimiTatiee BuDAnASS (Mot 20) TREAZ TEe
52,060 W
1d43 Partoulem of immovable praparties [ mnd and buldings) in th nsne of e Compnry s o feliows:
Parieulsrs Lezwian s Covared Ama
Acrum Bg L
Appacal Unk Sargedha Foad, 158 175 bt
Spinring, Kniting s Dysing Unis 2 WM, S oo, Faanlabac 117487 1 743 654
Froshel Lard 1A B Lethismaila, Shadhugurs Fosd, rn - =
Fremiold Larel 1531, Sharleewaly, Bhalidupurs Road, 857 - m
Spinning Lint Setyers Fond, 1.50 35104
Falsaiabad
Offica v Chell Lirnbs, Bl Fond, Faasaiabed 1 Er ] 524 =
Offs Regency Plas, Mall Rear, Faesisbad I -
" Conveend iemen 8 thags bialions coniiell of sulli-alonsy bailldngs
= o oonsbuction on s Bnd.
= Coversd srea o thiz locafion consisss ol bullding only, Seoause of mull-siorry plize.
114  Foroed sass vale of freshod lend given by the iIndopendent veluer es per el revalusion on 30 Jure 2020 was Rupses 3,084 825 millon.
415  Detall of sparating fesd sspsts, sxcisding thi bosk vl of Rupsss 500,000, Srpossd of dusing the yoar 1 a8 folsws:
Aeeumid-
{Desertption cont | i::i S | GENT | g of dispossl Paicalars of purchaars
—————RUFEEF N THOURAND———————
Wahleha
Towota - Corola Gl Gar ANG-TTD 406 sl 1,708 LA 689 Company Policy M Sarvet Taskean, Jhang Roed,
Faisalghad
Teyeda - Corolia Ads Car FO-15-840 e 142 T a8 #  CompanyPollcy M Tarlg Sased, House Mo F8,
Shaithopurs Rosd, Parmcdiss Villay,
Faizgighad
Teedn - Corolla Al Car AGF-545 1262 ] 12 1,300 {hd}  Negofafor  Ma Shahics Paresn, Houmse b, 15,
Sreut o, 177, Suddigue Steul, New
Samerabad, Lahon
Teyeka - Corola Car FO-17-£38 1,088 -] ) 1,504 5 Hegelalsr M E¥khar Alvesed, Chak Mo 39 GB,
#inirl Abad, Foisginted
Towota - Corolda Car FO-15-T80 e T Toé a £ Company Poicy  Knaweja Arsien, Howee No, 1, Green
Shoat, Sresl Mo &4, Popuiar Nursary,
Gujrerwale
Henda - Givie Car FOA-14-2TT ME &R 653 50 #7  Company Pollicy M. Abwad, Hooss M. 55, Streel Mo, 3,
Sharl Pura, Narwelt Road, Faisaisbad
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142

143

18,

1514

168

Capital wark-in-grogrias
ALV ENCHE ACPATC B
Buildings oo Plaet wnd against mgainst Feiaml
freshold land | | machinery purchase of purchase of
RUPEES IN THOUSAND-

A ot 01 Juby 2019 24 o 131,302 56,0488 380223 810235
Add: Additions during tho year 1,062 17,033 - 24,081 442,178
Less: Transfemed to oparating floed
aasets during the year {5,267) (168,543) (B4, B85) {36, 165) (801,713}
A sl 30 June 2020 18 857 7o, 792 - 351,100 &60, THA
#uddh: Addibons disring thy year 17,306 48,605 - 733819 300,820
Lags: Transhamed 15 oparating fnd
emmaia during the year (1.062) (58.455) . (323, 78T) (382,315
Ag al 20 Jyna WM 5191 E_'.IEH - 281,14 M

Bamowing cost of Rupses DUBDS million (2020; Rupsss T.148 milllon) was capiialred during the year uaing with the caplialzstion
rate of §.18 % o 5.21 % per annum (2020: 5.060% o 15.60% poer annum).

RIGHT-OF-USE ABSETS

| Buidings || Wehiclos || Mschinery || Tots |

e et S L LT T f 2 E WL T e ——

As al 0 July 2018 210,887 31,136 28 402 20314
Addams 238 580 : - 238 580
Dispemnsls - (7,128 {27 314} [34,442)
Depracialion chame (147,627} (B.122) (r.ame) (153,827)
Aa nl 30 Juna 2020 307,820 18,885 . 220,505
Additions 210,522 - - 210,522
Cisposals {140,458) - - {140,488)
Daprociabon changs (182 524) {4,506 - (188,430)
ha st 30 June 2021 188,730 15,379 - 204,109
Lozsa of bulldings

Tha Company oblalned tulldings on lease for ta office and buslness operallons. Ledsa lerms ard nogcliated on an individual basls
aid contmin 8 wits mngs of different lerms end conditions. Leass peniods o mendrmym of fve jyesrs

Loasa of vehicles
Tha Compary chinined vehickes on leass for amployess. The svemge conirect durstion is fhve yaers.
Thare s na impalmaent against fight-of-use saesta.

2021 o020
{RUPEES N THOUSAND)
Daprecistion chargs for the year has baon allocated as fallows:
Cost of asles (Mote 265} 180,226 148,808
Diestribution cosd (Mole 27T) 1,308 1.080
Adminlatrathve sipanses (Mola 28 4,896 4,042
188430 153 027
LONG TERM ADYVANCES
Conahdarsd good - sscumsd
Exmouthves (Note 18,1) 11425 10,840
Other employses 138 240
11,6581 11,080
Lesa: Current pordon shown under curment aasets (Nole 20) 4052 3,020
T,-lg IIEH:I
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101 Madmumn sgdregate balanss dud fram dchoutives &l the and of any month during B yoad was Rupsas 12.077 milien (2090;
Rupses 11.215 milllan).

162  Thoss moids the inorest oo sfanoss ghon o Company's axecutvyns and othor omployons moovarsbin 0 ogual monihly
instalments and secursd sgainat the gratulty paryabls of ihoss amploysas.

183  The fulr value sdjusimant in eccordance with the mquinements of IFRS 9 Financisl Instruments’ wrising n mapect of advences to
employnes & not conaldared material and hence not recognised.

21 2020
(RUFEES |N THOUSAND)
iT. STORES, SPARE PARTS AND LOGSE TOOLS

Siores (Nole 17.1) 1,508,135 1,556,586
Bpart pacts T28,07T8 886,307
Looes thols 8,318 5,781

. — 1L
174 These inchude slovos in transit of Rupees 108.070 milllon (2020: Rupoes 372,885 millon),

18, STOGK 1N TRADE
Few matwrials (Wobs 18 1 snd Nole 18.2) 4 G481 500 2 BaE A1a
Work-in-proceas. (Mote 18.3) 2277 B4 1,696,128
Finizhad poods (Mobe 18.4) 4 AEB 334 3,832,222

11,283,501 4,125,166
189 Thess incheds gioek in el of Rupsses 258 088 mlfan (2000 Rupsss 1856515 millan).

182 Thess inchude stock of Rupees 720.342 million (2020: Rupses 171.345 milion) sent to third parties for comamsion.
183 These include stock of Rupess 179,312 million (2020: Rupsss 81,345 milion) sert ko third parties for processing.
184 Thase include stnck of Rupees 333686 miflion (2020: Rupses 172,605 milion) sent to third parties for processing.
185 Stock in trads includes stocks amounting to Rupese B32.644 milion (2020: Rupess 133176 millon) valusd at net realizable vakus.

188 The apyegele amount of wils-down of Freantories o net nealirable valus mcognbred ss Bn eponss during the yoor was Rupees
2653 BE0 mrillion (2020 Rupaas 268.160 millan).

1% TRADE DEBTS

Considorid gosod:

Epoumed (agained lothars of cred®) B0, 284 420,530

Uritecnaiend - . .

Related parly (MNole 18.2) HO358 &T6,TH

O - sgairud contract T, B4 T,
8,005,522 8,208,353
8,105,876 8626 983

Less; Allowancs for eepacied credd losses (Mol 18 .4) B70 506 BA3. 132

T T, 1
R — O, LTSRS

Trade dedis i1 respect of forelgn and looul jurisdctions bs gven belew:

Arnbrica ahd Canisds 15,054 278 4,315,900
Europes 873,584 1002897
Asla, Africa and Ausiralia a4 Bl T 553
Paikistan 1,262,744 2,168,361

Ta260 7703051
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Trauta Sabls dus froes the salated party wan fram Challengs Apoamds Lin s,

T Frsicdirium agorogats amourt dud friarm e ralated sarty, Challangs Asparls Limited &t the and of any manih during T yior was
Rupsss B51.228 milllea (2000 Bupssa 1,037.348 milllen),

19.4

202 2020
Alfowancs for sxpocted credit losses (AUPEES 1M THOUSAND)
Cponing balance 883,132 64,708
Add: Charged during the year 4,484 TOB 426
867 816 883,132
Loss: Recovered durdng the year 67 (0
Ciouing batance BT, 508 B&3, 132
LOANS AND ADVANCES
Coneldered good - Interost free
Aguinst salary
= Exacutives 3 BAH 7388
- Other smployeas BA 612 57,484
AL bl dopdrubl
= {ther smpicyees 20,418 206,618
81,316 246,165
Currgnt portion of long wem advances [Nots 16) 4,002 2,020
Advancos o suppliers 548,054 238,701
g4 a5 3T, G
SHORT TERM DEPOSITS AND FREPAYMENTS
Lathers of credit 11,5673 33T
Propaymoria 5B 435 5364
Margit deposita 133,428 111.418
Bty depbela inchuding cumint portion 24 818 18,548

226 D54 130 727
QOTHER RECEIVABLES
Comaldersd good:
Sales tax refundeble 1,581,187 o1 238 208
Expord mbale 156,408 46 168
Duty drewback claima 1,357,605 311,500
Cthers 24 539 38 130
3 d6a.017 1,834,188
AHORT TERM INVEATHMENTS
Al amortired cost
Halbsh Bank Limiad (Mote 231} 100,000 100,000
At falr valus through profit or loss
Al Moz imaestmant Managemont Limied BT 02 248
e 2218,

Thisss Mpresdnt imastmenl B Tam Finends Coffificites (TFCs) lsiued by Habd: Bank Lrisd ol e prafit b of 3 Manih
KIBOR=1.60% (2020: 3 Month KIBDR+1.60%) par snmim.
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8.1

20T Fareail
CASH AND BANK BALANCES (RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
With banks:
On cument accounts inskiding LSS 1,044 20,224 43,113
[P020: LSS 1, da)
On seving Bcoounts including LSS 60,478
(F020; LSS B0435) (Note 24.1) i3 BEs E27.272
Tonm doposk receipt (Noln 24.2) == 800,000
29 Deg 1170385
Gash in hand 1,843 2829
530,831 1,1 4

Rate of profd on sming sceounty mrges from 2.75% o 11.28% (2000 3264 to 12.50%) por annum.

Thoss regresanind laem depoall moelpt pleced with o banking company' hoving matudity of ona monlh et proft rete of &.50% par

BT
2021 2020
REVENUE (RUPEES IN THOURAND)
Revenua from contracts wilh. cusinemenr:
Local salos LE18460 4443318
Expart palos 32,785 260 3 04E THA
Wasts el TER483 441 B0
Kndtting [ dyeing imooeme 1,65 AT 1543 1718
37,818,152 29,379,854
Lasss: Sabia Lax 7o TR 714,292
L e

The emount of Rupess T2.420 million incuded n contrect abiiles (Note U) @ 30 June 2020 has besn récognized oo revenue in

HE (20 Rupess 15688 mion)

COBT OF BALES
R maborinis coney mad 15, ikg, 333 10,148,882
Halnres, wages ard olhbor berofis 5,745,826 5306, 744
Sani redirermant oerefit 248,737 =
Funl mnd powsss 2,385,800 2,074,860
Crypers. and chamicals oonsurnsd 2881 035 ?,11'I.1H
Siores, spara parts 8nd iooss lools oonmumed 1,071,080 54T
Poeiing motodals sno aihes chomgos 2084 378 2974, 328
Oritalde knitting, dyeing and CMT charges 1,317,802 o727
Fagarir arwd rruanbonisio GI0,68T GaT.evT
|naurEnce 128.2¢2 126,266
Dihar Inciory cvarheads (Mobs 28.1) BT1,420 1,733 027
Deprociation (Mo 14.1.2) #T2,58T 20,207
Depraciation - right of.uss aasats (Nots 15.1) 180,226 148,805
3,288, 100 27042 T29
‘Work-in-process:
Opaning saock mmill 2225 565 |
Closing sock (2ITT 654 {1,596,1
{81 538} 240
Cumt of grods. mamufacdied A2 B0, 531 27 BT 188
Firishad goods:
Cipmning stock a83z. 222 3,262,843
Cloming slock {l-.d-ﬁg.aull @Ega_zJ
(B, 192) {360,200
31,742 440 27 302,560



Thiri Inchids |jarsh rentils amaUnling o Ripses X7 800 millkn (2020 Rupess 28,787 millon) of vehilcles.

DIETRIBUTION COBT
Salariey and other ey
Staft et rerment banedt
Cammission b selling apkhts
Iy rnce
Tranveling and commyancn
Vahicies' namning
Printing and stationeny
Cammynaaation
Cratarard Traight erd distiisuiion
Deprochation {Note 14.1.2)
Didprpciaiion - dght-ol-uss asaola [Mabs 15.1)

ADNMISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Balarms and ok Derefis
Siafl retiremant banafit
Fent, rodes ond bnxes (Mols 20.1)

Dapraciaiion (Nots 14.1.2)
Depracistion - Aght-of-uss sesets (Nate 15.1)

Anrun medit fow

Hadf yoardy rovies oo
Dfher carfcaliona
REmEursabls Spanns

OTHER EXFENSES

Allowance for expecied aredi iosses (Nole 1904)
Irterest Incama on saias tas refund bands weitten aff
DG of previous years

Salod L rossivadie Boairal packing maborsl neveraad
Nel axchanga loss

Workar's walamn hand [Mole §)

2031 200
[RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
ST NG 168,673
30,649 1,568
58,662 443,663
10,020 2,060
&3 374 b4 B78
10,935 .58
1,511 335
N 260 28 888
828,274 SE0.09
BB0 B35
1,308 1,080

—ZIES0 2189818

[
04,857
3,143
15,743

T.582
a.788
6,138
8,730
17,485
1,962
&0
17,188
4,5
5,538
15943
13,612
#,283
Ta.512
4,098

414008
B2 505
kel
e
10688

8,350
5682
8274
16,625
2,182
T
16811
4,080
4,551
2504
13,588
1,928
TaEz
4,042

—BeAdeE. . TIRak

Thess inciude ljarsh reninis amounting i Rupees B.883 millon (2020: Rupsss 12.627 million) of vehicles,

(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

3800 2500
550 500
450 175
116 85

4515 4080

4 484 708 428
- 4780
- 21,801
- [

287 385 -
#1188 -
ETE N1




OTHER INCOME

Income from financial shests

Profi on dopositas with banks and TFCa
Dividend Incoms

Reveraal of allowanss for sxpacted oradit itasss [Mots 19.4)
el axchangs gain

Incoemee froan non-Nnancial ssssls

Sale of sloms and sorap

Gain on sale of property, plant and eguipment

Armordzation of defemed income - Govemmant grant (Note 8.2)
Calm on refmdaiunedndnl of GIDC [Neots 8U3)

Gain on amination of hese Eability
Oihars

FMANCE COST

Marksup | Intersst on:
Long term Snancing

Shert berm bomosdings
Lossa HailFips (Mola T.1)

inlsreat on workers' profl pamiclpation fund
Uinvnding of diacaunt an GIDC payabls (Mels 8.3)
Bank charpes and commission

TRAXATION

Caarant [Mote 32.1)
Prioe year aojustmants

k21 2030
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
98,544 132,135
4,180 3218
407,020 2
= 182,845
297,744 228,188
o4 402 G959
13,955 37,821
48,258 -
2,740
10,388

B14, 580 758,133

502,458 742,533

18,648 24 998

- 6,575
1,758 1

144,328 177067

1,281,812 1,699 206

S0, 384
T 268

J87,852 268,828

374,855
{B.228)

The Comparry falis in the amd of final teo fegime under section 163 of tha Income Tex Crdinence, 2001, Provislon for hcome et ls
msds Bccoddingly. Furlher, provision fior tax on other income = made af prevalling e mides. Mo provdsion for defermed ortion e
requirsd due in Enal lax on exparts. Reconciliabon of x expencs and produnt of sooounting prodit muliphied by G sppicabis

ruds 15 nod reguired In view of final bice on seporl

EARNINGS / (LOST) PER S8HARE

Basic samings | (loss) per share
Profit / (loss) attributable o ordinery shaeholdars
Dividend on prefersnce shems

Waelghted sserage nuimbar of ardinary dhdnod
Ewrrings [ (e} por ghare - Baly

Dl hurteed smmilngs { (lose) par share

(Rupsas |n thousand)
[(Rupsas In thousand)

02 2020
B40,638  (4,120,278)
(28,9498 (47 582)
511,567 (4,167 981)
&7 500 000 &7 500 000
9.08 (81.75)
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Proift / (loss) attibutable to ordinary shareholdemn
Divwichend on profonencs shnms:

Walghtad sverage number of ardinary shares
Eamings / (loss) per shars - Dilulsd

CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

Profit [ {loss] before iaxation
Adjurtmants for non-cesh chargea and othar Rama:

Depreciaton

Provision for gratuity
Adgwance for mpecied omdl losses

Reversal of allosmnce for mpected oredil iosses
Gain on sale of property, plant end eqguipmeont
Amortzation of delfermed income - Govemment grant
Gain on remensuremant of GIDC

Enterest income on sales tax refund bonds written off
Galn on leeminaton of leass Rability

Finance cost

Working capital changes (Note 34.1)

Working capital changes

(Increass) / decreass in current Esacls

Sioras, spore parls erd oo took
Siock in rade

Trade debita

Loana and advances

Shwort e depossls and prepaymants
Othar racehmablen

Incramsa i (decreasa)) In trade and ather paysbies

20 2020
{Rupwes 0 thousand) 840,635 {4,120 Z79)
{Rupess In thousand) {28,068) (47 882)
e ___@iereen
(Mumbers) 74 203 230 73 248 820
(Rupess) B (58,807
20 2020
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
1,038,187 (3.751.650)
1138483 1,053,682
338,243 212384
4 484 To8.426
{197.020) H
(13,955) (47 m21)
{46,258) -
{2,740) =
. 478
{10.384) =
1,281,812 1,609 258
(1,627,249) 1,526,215
1,800 B0% 1,601,208

(4,145,818)

2,518,570

(1.627.249) 1,528.215
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Hi Reconcliistion of mewemarts of llabilies to cash Aows from Anandng sctbities:

£ -4

E£E

Loaglerm | Ehoilem | L Capltal Tola lonjiorm | Bhorfiem | Lowm
Bowncig | borvwing | bliies | cosiibuion

Telal

JPUPEES M THOLEUNE]

Balnos s of 01 Loy TIEES (R N . B e LE L ES A Lk - N
Trmnstarmd i intssa fabiles on edoplon of RS 10 Leses’ - - - e M
Tisrminaion of esse by . - [ WL . L) . - -
Protesds fros long bem frandeg 1T - - . T/ELEN L0807 . - Amran
Contimtion tom dirscior | shavbides: . . . Lm0 150008 . . -
Lihest brern bormings: oddained » nel . i B = " e sk} . 155544 . LEShAH
Rapuyrrant ¢f kong larn franding Lo - - < (MUR [N - - fumam
Amorizalion chaged using the edectve intomd method [l = s ; )

Rapmyrant of lsan ksbliSies . . {157} . (T, 5] . . [WO808)  {LELOGE)
Baodarcn 58 of 30 Jerw TERRZ {5M100 ZEDE 1AM ME0ET ITEEE G MIER nEHES

EVENT AFTER THE REFOATING PERIOD

Board of Direcions of the Company has proposed prafisrence dividend for e prefensnce sharshoklens of the Company amounting 1o Rupees 033
(2020: Rupees 1.53) per shars deciared ot i mesting haid on 05 Dataner 7021 However, this svent has been considered as non-adjusting ovent

imder LAS-10 ‘Everts ofer the Raporting Percd’ and has nol bean recognized |n these Snanclal staiements.
REMUNERATION DF CHIEF EXECUTIVE DFFICER, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTNEE

AQGEE IO charged I Uhiss Inpnciol slMemEnTs for emungration nciuding ol Henele 1 e Chil! Expcuthv o, Dinscions and Exscifes of The
Comparry are s Bl

=21 —_ wm
Ghigl Chip
DESCRIFTION Bcscutive ‘ Pussulives | Busouih | Bssuiives
Cffionr Offiewr
—_— RUPEERIN THOURAND———
Managarisi mmunsmtion 8,000 158 445 BO00 137812
Mlorwarcss
Heimas monl 3,200 Baam 1200 55,148
Ofher mllowmnoes Bl 15845 800 13,747
Praymant of atal rebrmemnt gret.sty . 1,523 .
12,000 238262 12000 200 B0%
hurber 8f pavacn 1 ™ 1 &

Tha Chind Exacutive Officar and soma of the exsculives ee provided fren wse of Company makrinined vohiches,

Meating fow amounting o Rupess 0,120 million [2020: Rutpess 0,180 milkon) b boon pald @ theee son-aaculive Erectors (20200 thres non-womcytive dincton],
Agar] from meefing fee as saled in Mole 357, no emunerstion was paid fo eny direcor of the Compary.

@
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TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The related parties comprise of asacciate, asaociated company, offer related padies and key management personnod,
Detall of transactons with related parties, olhér than thoss which have bsén disciosed alsewhers in thess financial
stalmments oo aa Tollows.,

2021 2020
Assoclate (RUFEES [N THOUSAND)
Shanghal Ghailangs Taxtls Company Limted
Dividend pald 44 382 -
Aspociated company
Challungs Apparsts Limbted
Sale of goods and services B8 324 842,830
Purchese of goods and sanioes - 122,010
Purchase of oporating fixsd asesls 28 Ba0 -
Other related partiss
Dividend pald - J2.858
Capital contribution from dinsclor | spousa 200,000 -

Detail of companeation to key managemont parsonnel compriaing of Chief Executive Officer, Directors end Exacutives s
disciosad In MNobe 38

Shanghsi Challengs Texdile Company Limited (SCTCL) is the assocate due to 25.77% sharsholding in the Company.
SCTCL I Incorparated In China.

Challenge Appanals Limiled i the essociated company by way of common direciorship.

HUMBER OF EMPLOYEES 2021 2020

Number of employess as at 30 June 18 BOD 13 027

Average numbar of amployeas dunng tha vear 16 489 15574
201 2030

PLANT CAPACITY AND ACTUAL PRODUCTION (FISURES N THOUSAND)

SPINMING

Production at nonmal capacity converted to 20s

count based on three shifts per day (Kgs.) 5742 5 T57

Actual production cormvortad to 208 count

basad on thres shifts per day {Kgs.) 6133 & 018

KMNITTING

Production ot normel capecity besad on throe shifts por day (Kgs.} 42 BE0 43 187

Actual production based on thres shifts per day (Kgs.) 22T 17 5&3

DYEING | FINIBHING
Production at nommal capadty on reacthe

dysing basis at thise shifts per day (Higs.) 50041 48 775
Actusl producion comvanad on mactive

dyairg basls ol hrea shifts par day (Fge.) 28 439 18 549
GARMENTS

Production et nommal capecity of nonmal [ average garmants

capacity based on single shift per day (D) 174 5229
Achusl production of normal § everage garmeanis

capacity basls on single ahift per day {Dmn.) 2 pay 3012

@
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-

REASONS FOR LOW PRODUCTION

Undar ulilirstion of avallable capacity is due to normal maintsnance and after affects of COVID=18 pandamic lockdown.
Kritting machines are available for differant types of febric for which ordems are based on sesscnal basls reaulting under

utliization of actual knitting capacity.

SEGMENT INFORMATION
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40.8 Revenus from major customans
Rarverams from major cusiomess of the Company's Processing and Garments segmant includes two ousiomers (2020: two) repressniing
Rupees 14,388 million (2020: Rupees 12413 milion). Revenue from other segments of the Company doos nal indude any majos
cusiomer,

41. FIHANCIAL RIEK MANACEMENT

411 Financial fak factors

Fisk management is carmied out by the Company's finance department under polices spproved by the Boerd of Directors. The Board
prowides principies for overall risk management, aa well 88 policies covaring speciic ansas such s curmency sk, other price sk,
Interest rate fsk, credi dak; lquidity dsk, imeatment of axcees Bouldity and use of non-dodvelive financal Instrumenta,

{a}

Markst riak

) Currancy risk

am

Cumengy risk is the nek thal the foir vesue or fubure cash fiows of & finencial nstremant will fuctvate because of changes In foregn
exchanpe rates. Curmenoy sk srises maindy from fulure commencisl ranssctions of meceivables and payables thal exést due 1o
tranaaciiona In fomign cumancies,

Thiés Compsany is sxpoasd bo cuttdacy rek arsing fom vadous curréncy axpoaurss, primanly with reepect ta e Unibed States

Doliar (L50D), Eure and Greet Britaln Pound (GBP). Curmently, the Company's foreign exchange risk sxposure s matricied fo bank
balances @nd e amounis receivable / pEvable fom /o e foreign entities. The Company's @cpoauns D CUMeNcY Msk Wil &3

felloiwn

2021 020
Cash at banks « LISD 1,573 1,479
Trade dabls - USD 43 558 032 34,023,018
Trado debls - Euno 262,268 32168
Trade debls - GBP 21,048 -
Tracks snd other paryables - USD {1,540, 164) (503,873)
Trass and othas payabion - Eum (2,658) {18,288)
Het exposiurs - LISD 44,187,580 47.6A0.610
Net sxposin - Eurn 268,112 A2E, BO3
Mel expeaune - GEP 21,048 -
Following signficant sxchange rses wers applied during the yees
Rupsss par US Dollar
Apbringa rals 180,18 158.17
Reporting dote mio 157,80 168,25
Rupsas par ELro
Avarags rikd 181.08 175002
Reporting dats it 188,12 18811
Rupses per QAP
Avarags rabs 21852 -
Reporting dels rate Fa.68 -

Sonaktivity snatysls

it tha funclional curmency, @t meporting dabe, ket weakened / simngthensd by 5% egainst the US0, Eurp and GBP with all othes
variahias hald conslant, the impact on profit | (loes) afler texetion for the yeer would have been Rupees 318,488 million higher |
lopr (2020 Rupses 3B 14T million leasr | higher), Rupses 2.304 million higher | lewsr (2020 Aupsss 3.081 millian kwer |
higner) and Rupees 0225 milken higher / lower (2020: NI) respectively, mainly a8 @ reeull of schanges gains / loeses on ransiaion
of forelgn exchange denominaled fAnancial instruments. Curmency risk zensitvity o forelgn exchange movements has bean
calculated on & symmedrc basls. In mansgemant's opinion, the sensltivity anahnals Is unrepresentative of Inhorent currency sk as
il Yerr nd exposune dobE POt e T exposUM guring Lhe year,

Othar prics fak

Odhar price rigk represants the sk theld the fadr velue or fubure cash Rows of & financial instrument will Ructusts becesss of changes
in market prices (other than those adsing from inlerest rele risk or cumenoy risk), whather those changes e oaused by lociors
spacific o the individual Bnanial ingtrument or its lesuer, or facioee @fecting o simiar nancia) ingtrument iracdad in the merkel A
ot 30 Juns 2021, the Company is nol axposed o commodity price rsk.



(i) Irvisrest rate dak

)

This represents the risk that the falr value or fulure cosh fiows of a financal Instrument will luciuate because of changas In Market
irlerest rales,

Tho Comgamy’s intorest mta risk arses from long o financng, lossa Kabilies. short oo bomowings, tomm financa: carificatos
and bank balsnseds 0 BNy sccounts. Financial instrements 62 vaniahls rebes aeposs the Compamy 1o cash Sow interaet rats risk
Finamcial inatrurnenis fxed rate expose the Company to far vaiue inleresd rebe fsic

AL tha meporiing date, the inlerest meis profile of the Company's Intemet bearng Bnandal Instruments was:

o iea | 30

(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
Fixpd rabe Instrumonts
Financisl zssets
Tormn dopaalt recsipt - 800,000
Financlal llublitthes
Long term finmncing 2,877 283 2,113,478
Lsprga [apelvilitige. 205,398 318290
Floating rete Instrumants
Financial asselo
Bank balances - saving accounis 438 B4 52T ATZ2
Torm finance certficates 100,000 100,000
Finsnclisl liabliities
Long teem financing 4,576 218 5,642 040
Lotusny tsboitio 20,668 22,285
Shart torm borrosings 15,011,000 15,836 &0

Fair valus ssnsltivity snalysls for flxed rais Instruments

The Company doas not account for any fixed reta financial sssets and labiites ai faér valua through profl o oes. Thaerelomn, 8
changm in intarest rate &t the reporting date would not effect profit or loss of the Compary.

‘Gash fiow ssnaltivity snalysls for variabls rele Instrumants

i imerest mutes, sl the year end dule, fuduates by 1% higher [ lower with el other varables held conslant, profit / (loss) afer
tnxation for the yeer would heve Deen Rupses 186984 milion iower | higher [2020: Rupeass 208 729 million higher / lower], mainiy
a3 B resudt of higher [ lower intorest expenes | incoms on Aoafing rele inenciel Instruments. This anadysia = prepared sssuming thal
amounis of Eabilities outstanding at reporting dete wen outstanding for the whole year,

Gradit rink

Cradit fisk represents the sk that one pady to & finendsl instrumaent will causs & financial loss for the other party by failing to
discherge an obligabon. The Company does nol beleve il s exposed 1o mejor conoenirstion of ooedit nsk, however [0 MANSJE &y
posalble exposure he Cormpany applles appioved cradit Bmil 1o s cuslofmers. The mstagemanl monitas and lmlls Company's
axposurs o cradit through monitodng of cloent's axposurd roviesy anvd consenvative satimates of allowance of opacted credit loes.
Tha Compaty B exposad o cadit dsk on trade dabls, bank balances, deposits, investmons, loans, sdvances and olber
fachivabiid. The carrying amdont of fndnchl Assts mprasents ths A cedil axposurs, The mskfum axposin b cradil
riak ot the reporting date was sa follows:

Inrvissirnents 108,771 203,218
Traha dobis 7435280 7,753 851
Loame and advancss 72,459 0,627
Daposita 235 BES 212 458
Oither recalvabins 24 F3g 38, 130
Bank Dalanoss vaz i 1,170,385
8403602 843870

The credi quality of financlal sasets thal sre nelther past dus nor Impalred can bo assessed by relerence to edemal credh retings
(F avallable) or 1o historcal information about counterparty default rate, The xiemal credi ming of Company’s bankers I8 given
Dalow:

@)
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Short tarm || gm I _Agency |IM

Banice
Mational Bank of Paklstan A+ A Vis '
Alllpd Bank Limited Al+ AR, PACHRA 4T3 229093
Askod Bank Limied A+ Abw PACERA 21,972 22 946
Bani Altalah Lirmited Al AAT PAGRA 7,681 3,630
Firsl Woman Benk Limfied AZ A PACHA 2EATE Bd5 44T
Husbib Eank Limsed B4 AAA VIS B8 242 117,224
Habib Matropsiten Bank Limited Al+ AAr PAGHA - 28,813
Bani Al-abin Limited A+ AU, PACHA 3,585 5,800
MCE Bank Limted A+ BB PACRA 14,686 10,678
Tha Bank of Puniat AT+ AR PALRA 80,062 18,338
Dasbai isdmrmic Bank Pakisten Limed Bl A VIS 10,8 & 254
Standard Charierod Banik (Pokistan) Limded M+ A, PR i B g
Linited Bank Limibed A+ A, Vis & 554 #4273
AlBgraks Bank (Pakston) Limited A i PARCHRA 12 538 1,348
Surmimet Bank Limited * BiA hiA Vvis - BO&
Sonar Bank Limibad AT+ Ad- PACRA &2 2T B, 130
Barmba Bank Limitod A1 Ay Vis 55, TR0 2,042
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China P4 Al Mondy's 14,104 T.2848
Moazan Bank Limited A1+ A Wi 8320 ) |
The Bank of Kivwbar A1 A vis 1,700 180,837
Khushhal Micre Financs Bank Limibed A A+ Vis i2 52383
FINGA Micrefinancs Bank limited A1 M WIS 25 -
[ C] 1.1@

* VIS has suspandsd the credit ratings of the Bank dus 1o non-availabilty of updated Anancial information, &8 nd Arancsl stalamants
have been mads avellable by the Bank after the perlod ended 31 March 2018,
The Company appbes the IFRS 9 simplified sapproach 1o messum expected credil loss allowence for it trade debis. The Comparny
has concluded that the expected loss rates for trade debta epainal local sales are different from the expected koss rates for rede
dabls agalnst expan sales,
As af 30 Juna 2021, rade debis of Rupees 848 861 million (2020: Rupees 1 5867760 millon) wers past due byt not impaired. Thess
raints fo & number of Indepandent cuslome s from whom thers s no ecent hisbory of delosull. Tha ageing anabmsls of thees trede debis ks

2021 2020
{RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

Related party

Upto 1 month - 8,107

1 & & moniha 88,714 255,831

Mo than 6 monthe 273 Bas SET 418
240,358 B2 457

Qthars

Lipto 1 month araBas G0 089

1 to B months 174,330 128,625

More than B8 monlhs &0 [-T4

BOB &0 738,303
R . T

Cue to the Gompany's long standing business relationships with these counterparffies and efter giving dua considerstion to their
slrong NMnancial standing. manggomenl dosd nol adpedd Rhon-padformancd by thess sountirparlies on thair obigations Lo thi
Company, Accordingly the credit risk is minimal,

Liquidity risk

Licuidity rigkt in tha rsk that an antity will sncountar dificulty in masting obligations aseacistnd with financlal labiitiss.

The Company manages bquidity rsk by maintaining suffsiant esah and the ovalablity of funding through an ededqusts amsunt of
commitied credit faclites. Al 30 Jume 2021, the Company had Rupses 2,064 milen (2020: Rupess 2,070 millicn) avaiabie
borrowing (imits from financial institutons and Rupess 530,931 millon (2030 Rupees 1,173,014 miilllon) cash and bank balances.
Managerent believes the Rguidity dsk to be kow. Following are the contraciual malurdties of financial Rebifities, Inchuding Interes!
payments. The amounts disciosad in tha bble am undiscourted cosh Mows.




Follpwing am the contraciusl maturities of financial liskdities a8 =t 30 June 2021
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Carrying Contraciual | & months or “ More than 2
o h flows P g-12 n;nntlu" 1-2 ysara I

Mon-dertvative financial Habliities:
Long tarm financing 7,553,812 8,583,550 1,555,818 1,450, 8908 2,585,662 2,848,873
Laasa lisbifies 226,085 242,990 92883 50254 o087 29,088
Unciaimed dividand 11,148 11,146 11,148 - - -
Linipaiiled o ke 47.682 4T B2 AT.682 - = ~
Short ferm borrowings 15,011.000 15084 447 13.655.847 1.538.500 - -
Trade and other payables 4 680561 o, 580, 561 4,634,539 45422 -
Accrusd mark-up 160,764 180, 184 160,164 - - -

!?lnillt!ﬂ HIEM M A 128 DEd z,m,i-m 2,678 0240
Foliowing am the contrachinl maturities of financisl |isbilifies sa et 30 June 2030

Carmylng Contraciual || & montha or Mors than 2

amaurnt eash flows lssa SR P || bk i " yHars
Mon-derivative financial lisbilities:
Long termm financing 7,755,519 9,530,658 431,898 B23,818 3,081,335 5,613,507
Laasa lizbifias 30,578 388,810 T 60,683 104,807 133,963
Linclaimed dividend 85,202 85 262 85,282 - - -
Short tevm bemrowings 16,835,860 16,000,244 14,696,344 1,408,000 - -
Trade and other payables 2,241,381 2,241 381 2,981,192 50,169 - -
Accroed mark-up A Tad e TE4 b= 2 - 3 -

28, 382 24 17 17,770,065 2,3%0 780 3 182 042 E 749,470

Tha coniractual cash fows relating ta the above Bnancial Babllitiss heve been dotorminad on the basis of interest retes | mak-up
rates effecthva as at 30 June. The rates of interest / mark-up have been disciosed in MNote 8, Nota 7 and Mote 11 of thess financial
Fmtements.,

Capital risk managenmst

The objective of the Company when managing capital ks to safeguard s abillly to continue as 8 going concem so that it can
oontirue o provide refums for sharsholders and benefits for olher stakeholders; and {o mainisin B sirong capital bese to suppord
e sustanndd develapmbnl of e businesa.

The Company manages its capital structune by moniioring return on net assets and makes adustments to it in the light of changes
in scanomic conditions, In order to malinin or adjust the capital sructurs, the Company may adjust the smount of dhvidend pald 1o
the sharshokders or isage new shares. in gccordance with the termes of faciity ketber of term finance feciiity sws by Habio Bank Limited
{Eha Bank) uncer SEF Refinance Schems for payment of wages snd salariea & givan in Mote 6.1.1, Company shall iake prior approval
of tha Bank befors declaring amy dividand.

Tha Company finances (e expension projecis thiough squity, bomowings and manegamant of s working capéial with a view o
maimtain an approgriate mix beteean varous sources of finance to minimize dak.

412 Financial iInetrumants by categories

L)

2021 2020 |
Al Tabr value Al Fair valve
theough profit ""::‘"’ Total  |through peofit "‘T Total
or ok or o
RUPEES N THOLUEAND
Az wt 30 June
Financisl ssaels a8 par atalsment of financisl posithoen
Imvesgiments: arr 0, Dy 108,77 103,218 gl i 203 218
Trade dabils - 7435280 7435 280 . ¥, 783,851 7,783 851
Logns and adhvanceas L TZAT T2Ags = 50627 sogar
Deposilts and prapaymants - 235,565 235,565 2167187 295, 78T
Cther recadvaibes - 24 B39 24 838 38,130 38,150
Cash and bank bajlances - 530,531 530,831 1,178,074 1,173,014
8771 B, 360 874 B, 405, BE 108,58 9.7 400 B 4 B7

@
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Finaencial fiabiifties me par sirtemant of Ananclal posiion
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At amortized cost

&

{RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

Lowng berrni inancing 1583812 T.756,519
Leass liabifitas 226,005 340,578
Linciairrad dividand 11,948 BE 282
Unpeid dhvidand 47 Ga2 -
&hon term borrowings 15,011 000 46,838 860
Trade and other payabios & BRO BE1 2,241 364
Accruad mark-up 160,164 304, TB4
—RE  FEESISET
Racanclllaion ko the [Ine bems presdnbed Iin the statemant of Mnanclal poallon s s followa;
iy 2020
Total as par Toial ne por
Flnanclai ?"’"‘“ statermert of | Flnanolal mﬁ ""”I statement of
bl “"""l - fnainclal it o Rrianchal
poaltion pasiilon
RUPEES IN THOUSAND
Assats a3 par stetemant of financial position
Imvestmants 108,771 . 106, 774 20348 . 203,218
Trade dabis 7,435, 200 - 7,435 280 7,783,851 - 7,763,851
Logrs and guivienDneg T2 A58 o e 841,831 B0 827 ABT 258 BT EBR
Deponits and praprymsts 215,565 BA,3T0 323,535 215,787 Z2T1E 238,502
Diher nacshabies: 24 B30 3138378 J168.047 38,130 1,706 056 1,634, 186
Caesh and hank bafnnoes £30,531 - B30, 531 1, 178,14 . 1,173,014
__BADSEAE  3.7W6.ZH0 12201885 0444827 2.306.030 11,760,
N 2020
Total 59 par Othae Total &8 por
Financlal ::hrhl " statament of Finarnclsi m“::' wimbemant of
Habilthes finanaclal Wabl s Bnanclal
Iinksiftion |1l
position | ____ position
HUPEES IN THOUSAND
Uabiities a3 per stmtement of financisl poaibion
Long berm firmmsing 7553 812 - 7555 812 T.765 518 - 7,755,810
Linzan Snblliten 226,085 - 226,065 MO,576 - 340,576
Uineiaimad dividand 11,148 - 11,148 B5 22 - 55 262
Unpaid dividand 47 652 - AT 682 - - -
Ehoirt tarm barrouwings 15,011,000 - 15011,000 15835880 - 15,835 BE0
Trage and gtheT pEysliog 4,560,961 ZFT, 151 4,058, 142 2,241,361 168,963 2430 344
Aessruad merk-Uug 180,164 - 160,184 304,784 - 304, TR
T2 R0, FEERLE Ff R

Offsatiing finencisl ssssts snd finenclal |inbil e
Af on fepofing dals, mecognlzed fnanclal Insfrumaents G hol sublict to offselting 48 o @ o enlorcaabls masted matling

grengomonts and aimiar sgreamants.
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RECOGNIZED FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS « FINAMCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value hiererchy

Judgernents and estimales are mede in debermining the fair values of the financial instruments thet am eoognized and meesured ol
fair value in these fnencisl siatements. To provide an indicefion about the relisblity of the inputs vsed in determining fair vaive, the

Company hss claasified B8 NTnancial instruments. rbo following s levsla. An axplanaton of ssch vl follcvs undemaath the tabko:

| Lovel1 | Lewsiz | Lewiz | Tota

(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
Financisl sssats - recurming fair value mass reosnt

AL falr valus through proflt or (oas 8771 z - 8771
Al 30 June 2031 8,771 P = 8771
Al 30 June 2020 103,218 ¢ . 103,218

Tha above table doea nol indude felr valua information for financial esssls and Anancial lisb@8tes nol messured af fair value B the

camying ameunts ord @ ressonsbie approodmation of fair value. Due b the short i nature, camying amounts of cortein financial
essdls anvd nanclal lebilUes are considensd 1o Do the same 88 thelr Talr value. For U majorty of e non-curment rmecshabies, e falr
vilah Mo B30 Rot sigrifizanty dManant i thalr canmying amounts,

There wes ho iranafers babwoon livals 1 and 2 fof recurmng falr vilue msisirsments dufng e yade, Further thebs Wil o Rndber
cut of level 3 messuramants.

The Company's palicy is o moognize trarsfers into end trensfers oul of fair valus hierarchy leveis as at the evd of the mporting
|period.

Leevnd 1: Tha fair valus of financial instrumants radad in aciive mankets (such as publicly traded denvaihes and squity aacurites) iy
besed on quoled marke! prices at the end of the mporting perdcd, The quoled market price Leed for Ananclal assels held by the
Company ks the cumont bid prica. Thess instruments am included in level 1.

Leval 2: The tair valus of fnancisl instruments that are nol Treced n an active market (for seempss, cver-the-oounier demvatives) ks
delermined using valustion lechniques which madmize e vse of cbeervable markel dats and rely as Kte es possible on enlity-
spochic estimatos. T o significent inputs nequired o falr velue an instnument are obeervable, the Instrument s Inclided In level 2.

Levad 3: If one of mors of the slignificant Inputs I not based on cbeanvable market dota, the instrurment i Included In level 3, This s
il Cnis Bor unitabed Sduity SACuriies.

Valustion technique used to determing falr valus

Specific valustion Bchnigue veed to vl nancial instrurmants includes the use of markst pricas.
REGCOGNIZED FAIR VALUE MEABUREMENTE - MON-FINANGIAL ASSETS

Falr value hlsrsrchy

The judgamants and astimabis made in delarmining the fair values of thé pon-financlsl Gasets thel are moogrifed ehd messured &l
falr value In ihe financial stroments. To provide an Indication aboit the reliabilty of the Inputs ueed In Selsrmining fir valus, (he
Company has clasaified s non-fnancial ssssts Into tha follewing throee lmwls,

@
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| Lawved 4 | Lewsi2 | L E] | Total |
—RUPEES N THOUSAND
At 30 June 32
Freatickd land - EEH‘E = EEEEE
AL 30 June 3020
Froanak land - g&m - EIE'EEE

Thd Codgery's policy 16 kb reoognizs banefes inkd and batdbers out of falr valus hisrarchy lovels as &l the and of the rgsbring
pariog.
Thairs wara ro irnsfor batwesn level 1 and 2 for recuvring finlr valus massuromant during e yoar, Further, them was no ansfer in
and out of lewsl 3.

(1] Valustion techniques ussd to determing level 2 fair values

The Company cblaing Indepandant the valuatisn for (5 freehcid land (clasaifed as proporty, plant and equipmant) alle: every hios
yaars. Tha managamant updetes the ssssssmant of the fair valus of freshald and, ialdeg Ime sceount the most recant indepandant
valusion. The managernant cabermines freshold land's value within 8 mange of reesonable falr value astimates. Tha basl evidencs of

lak vaiue ls cumenl prices In en active markst for similar lands.
Valuation procssses
Tha Company engages axiermal, indasandant and qualified valwer to detsoming the fair value of the Compeny's freshold land,

Changes in fair values are sneiyzed during the valustion dscussion between the Chief Finencisl Officer and the valuer. As part of this
mnmmianMWH-mhhurmm

A4, DATE OF AUTHORTZATION FOR [BSUE

Thess financial siatements wera approved and authorired for lssus on 0F Oetaber 2021 by the Board of Dincioms of  the Company.

48 CORRESPOMDING FIGLURES

Comeeponding figuea hove been re-amanged, wherewsr necessary for e purpese of compesrison. However, no significant re-
amangemonts have bean made cxcapt (ha follesing:

REGLASBIFICATION AMOUNT
PARTICULAKS FROM T 0 [RUPEES IN THOUBAND)
Dfrmnd Lallllby for Dofarrad labllty for gratully  Defaerad bl iea 964,354
gratuity
GIDC poyabla Trasde and other payables GIDC peryabils 31,618
(Gumend Babilites) (Mor=purmant e bililiee)
|razoem e Bhort term deposis. and Face of stateman of finsncial 933,018
prepayrranks peock it

48. OGEMERAL

Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand of Rupees uniess otherwise stated.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE DFFICER DIRECTOR CHIEF FINANGIAL OFFICER



FORM 34
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017
THE COMPANIES {(GENERAL PROVISIONS AND FORMS) REGULATIONS, 2018

[Section 227 (2)}(N)]
PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING AS ON 30 JUNE, 2021
PART -1
1. Incorporaiion Number ‘0012223
1.1 Name of the Comparny MASOOD TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED
PART-1T
2.4 Patiern of holding of lhe shames held by the sharsholders e af 20.08.2021
[EZ Fo ol sharehokienn ] [ Sharehoidings | [Total shares held |
580 Sharsholding from 1 1o 100 Shares 39,881
481 Sharshoiding fream i1 s 500  Shares 112,513
[} Sharshoiding from 501 1o 1000  Sheares 08,327
120 Sharehoiding from 1001 o 5000 Ehares 299,654
21 Sharsholding from 5001 o 10000 Shams 143,472
B Sharshoiding from 10001 b 15000 Ehoros 80,748
4 Sharshoiding from 16001 b 20000 Shates 71,300
4 Sharehoiding from 20007 to 25000 Shares 04,587
1 Shareheiding Trem 25001 s 30000 EShases 26,000
2 Sharshoiding from 30001 b0 35000 Shaves 67.500
1 Sharehoiding from Z5001 b 40000  Shares 40,000
1 Shareholding from 40001 to 45000  Shares 42,107
[] Sharshaiding frem 45001 b 50000 Ehores 243,801
1 Sharehoiding from 50001 W 55000 Shares 52,000
1 Sharehoiding  from 55001 fo 60000  Shaves 55,350
1 Sharehoiding ___from 85001 fo 00000  Shares 86,637
1 Sharshoiding from 0007 to  B5000 Ghavres B2,605
2 Sharehoiding from 95001 W 100000  Shaves 200,000
1 Sharehouding freamn 100001 o 105000 Shaves 104 882
1 Sharehoiding from 120001 to 126000 EShares 121,374
1 Sharehoiding from 285001 o 270000  Sharea 267.000
1 Sharehoiding from 390001 to 395000 Sheres 182,750
1 Sharsheiding fream 416001 b 420000 Shaves 418,835
1 Sharehoiding froem 835001 to B40000 Shames 639,000
1 Sharehoiding from EBO001 o BRS000  Shares E92,050
1 Sharshoiding from TESOM to TROOGO  Shares 785,180
1 Sharshoiding frowm TOO001 to TOE000 Shares 781,000
1 Sharshoiding from 1655001 o 1560000 Sharea 1,556,718
1 Sharehoiding from 187000 fo 1675000 Shomes 1,873,887
1 Sharsholding from 1725000 o 1730000 Shates 1,726,400
1 Eharehoiding from 2210001 b 2215000 Shares 1,214,188
1 Sharghoiding frem 4R5001 to 4390000 Shashes 4,387,500
1 Sharshoiding from 4535001 fo 4540000 Shoves 4 538018
1 Sharshaiding fream TEAS00M o 7E40000 Sharas 7,638,550
1 Sharshoiding froam 17385001 to 17400000 Shares 17,306,833
1 Sharghoiding from 20380001 to 20365000 Shares 20,382,500
1337 Total 87,500,000




PREFERENCE SHARES:
1 Shareholding from 245001 to 250000 Shares 50,000
1 Shumh:khi from 2485001 to 2500000 Sharas 2,500,000
1 Sharsholding from 3655001 to 3570000 Shares 3,666,888
1 Sharanoiding from 4435000 1o 4440000 Shares 4,440,000
3 Sharehoiding from 4995001 to 5000000 Shares 15,000,000
1 Shansholding from 5305000 to 5310000 Shares 5,310,000
L Total 31,166,668
23 of sharsholders | ] shares held | [ Parcentage ]
ORDINARY SHARES:
2.3.1 Direciors, Chiel Executive Officer, and their
spousa and minor childran, 181500 i
232 Associmed Companies, undertakings and
inted 17,256,833 2577
233 NIT and ICP | 2318280 | | 329 |
234 Banks, Davalopment Financlal Imstihstions,
Non Banking Financlal Institutions. SAn- ni
235 Insurance Companies | -“Iﬂ,il-l” ml
238 Modarabas and Mutual Funda | 4100 | | 0.01 |
23.7 Share holders holding 10% | 45,395,683 | | 8725 |
24.8 General Public
a. Local B,068, 355 B.98
b. Foralgn = =
239 Others - Joint Siock Companes / Co-
e : 7,268 458 10.77
3- PREFERENCE SHARES:
3.1 Banks, 20,606 560 -8 F
3.2 Investment Companies. 10,560,000 33.88
Signature of Ghie! Execulived Secrelary
Name of Signatory { NISAR AHMAD ALV |
Designation | COMPANY SECRETARY ]
CNIC Numbar Lals(1/oja]-]218]9] 3 4]e(o]-|9]
Morth Yaar
Date Iuiu [1Te] [EToTz2T1]
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MASOOD TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED
NAMEWISE CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDERS SUMMARY AS AT. 30-06-2021

| Categories of shareholders | Shares Held | Total Shares |Percentage |
ORDINARY SHARES:
2.3.1 Directors:
MR. SHAHID NAZIR AHMAD Chiaf Exacutive Dfficer 1,566,718
MR. MASEER AHMAD SHAH Chairman 42,187
MR. SHAEBIR AHMAD ABID Director B,000
MR. SHAHID IQBRAL Director 5,000
MR. SHOAIB AHMAD KHAN Director -
(NIT Nomines)
MR. SHIBIN YANG Director =
(Shanghai Challenge - Nominee)
MS, CHEN YAN Director -
(Shanghai Challenge - Noeminea)
SPOUSE: 20,362,500 | 21,972,405 3285
2:3.2 Assoclated Undertakings;
SHANGHA! CHALLENGE TEXTILE O, LIMITED - 17,306,833 25.T7
2.3.3 NIT ICP:
INVESTMENT CORPORATION OF PAKISTAMN 850
IDBL {ICP UNIT) 3,250
CDC - TRUSTEE NATIONAL INVESTMENT (UNIT) TRUST 2,214 168 2,218,289 329
2.3.4 Financlal institutions:
Banks:
MATIONAL BANK OF PAMISTAN - 4,538,588 6.72
2.3.5 Insurance Companies:
AGRO GENERAL INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED 7,584
DELTA INSURANCE COMPANY LTD. 100
STATE LIFE INSURANGCE CORPORATION OF PAKISTAN 382, 50 400 444 0.58
£.3.6 Modarabas And Mutual Fund:
THIRD PRUDENTIAL MODARABA 2,900
UNICAP MODARAB A, 200
CDE - TRUSTEE AKD OPPORTUMNITY FLND 1,000 4,100 0.04
2.3.7 Sharsholdars Holding 10% or Mora:
MAS. NAZIA NAZIR 20,382,500
FHEJANG XINAD INDUSTRY COMPANY LIMITED 7,636,660
SHANGHAI CHALLENGE TEXTILE CO., LIMITED 17,386,833 | 45,385,883 67.25
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|_Categories of sharehalders

| Shares Held | Total Shares |Percentage ]

2.3.8 General Public:

2. 1 k Com | k
FORTRESS TEXTILES (PVT) LIMITED

H M INVESTMENTS (FVT) LIMITED

KOHISTAN CORPORATION (PVT) LTDL

MAPLE LEAF CAPITAL LIMITED

MRA SECURITIES LIMITED - MF

WH SECURITIES (PVT) LIMITED,

WEE - PRE SETTLEMENT DELIVERY ACCOUNT
PASHA SECURITIES (PVT) LTD.

PRUDENTIAL CAP.MANAGEMENT LTD.
PAKISTAN KUWAIT INVET.[PYT)LTD

SHAFFI SECURITIES (PYT) LIMITED

SAVARI [Pv) LIMITED

SOFTWARE CREATIONS (PVT) LIMITED
TRUSTEE NBF EMP Banavolent Fund Trust
TRUSTEE NBP Employass Pansion Fund

¥.H. SECURITIES (PVT.) LTD.

¥Y.5. SECURITIES & SERVICES (PVT) LTD.

3. PREFERENCE SHARES:
3.1 Banks:

ASKAR! BANK LIMITED

HABIB BaNE LIMITED

MCE BANK LIMITED

NATIONAL BANK OF PAKISTAN
UNITED BANK LIMITED

3.2 Investment Companies;
FORTRESS TEXTILES (PVT) LIMITED
KOHISTAN CORPORATION (PVT)LTD.
SUNDAR IMPEX (PVT) LIMITED

6,066,353 8.99
2,616,462
4,900
4,387,500
1
26,000
<]
2,500
100
1,600
2,600
2,000
800
121,374
3,249
82,605
6,500
160 | 7.268,456 10.77
2 2,500,000
- 4 440,000
. 5,000,000
" 5,000,000
- 3,666,668
20,606,668 86.12
: 5,000,000
. 250,000
. 5,310,000
10,560,000 33.88
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FORM OF PROXY

MNo. of Ordinary Shares Held. Folio No. CDC Alc No.

'We,

aof

being a member of MASOOD TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED hereby appoint

(NAME)

{being a member of the Company) as my/our proxy to vote for me/us and on myfour behalf at
the 37" Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held at its Registerad Office at
Universal House, 17/1, New Civil Lines, Bilal Road, Faisalabad, on Thursday, the 28" day of
October, 2021 at 11.00 AM. or any adjoumment thereof.

As witnessad my hands this day of 2021

Signed by me in the presence of witness:

(Signature of witness) {Member's Signature)
CHIC. CNIC.
Five Rupeas
Ravanie
Stamp

Note: Proxies, in order to be effective, must be received at the Company's Registered Office
not later than forty-eight hours before the time for holding the meeting and must be duly
stamped, signed and witnessad.
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